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TRACXN TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(Formerly Known as "Tracxn TechnologiesPrivate Limited")

BOARD'S REPORT

To,
The Members
Tracxn Technologies Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Tenth (1001) Annual Report on the business and operations
of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31stMarch 2022.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY / HIGHLIGHTS

II Particulars
For the Year ended For the Year ended

31'1 March 2022 31'tMarch 2021

Income from Business Operations 6,34,535.12 4,37,786.71

Other Income 10,963.48 10,233.50

Other Gains/(Losses) - Net 6,080.97 1,09,397.38

Total Income 6,51,579.57 5,57,417.59

Less: Total Expenses excluding depreciation 6,53,691.63 6,08,371.04

Less: Depreciation 1,456.72 2,523.15

Loss before exceptional items & tax (3,568.78) (53,476.60)

Less: Exceptional Items 44,907.93 0.00

Loss before tax (48,476.71) (53.476.60)

Less: Current Income Tax 0 0

Less: Deferred Tax 0 0

Net Loss after Tax (48,476.71) (53.476.60)

Loss per share (Basic) (0.48) (0.55)

Loss per share (Diluted) (0.48) (1.52)

(Amount in INR '000)

2. PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

During the financial year ended 3151 March 2022, total income of the Company was INR (in '000)
6,51,579.57/- as against the total income for the previous year which was INR (in '000) 5,57,417.59/­
During the year under review, the Company has posted a net loss of INR (in '000) 48,476.71/- as
against net loss of INR (in '000) 53,476.601- in the previous year.

3. DIVIDEND

In order to conserve the resources for the future business requirements of the Company, your Directors
have decided not to recommend any dividend for the financial year ended 31st March 2022.

4. TRANSFERS TO RESERVES

The opening balance as on 1st April 2021 of Reserves & Surplus Account stood at INR (in '000)
2,13,271.42/-. After adjusting and appropriations, the closing balance as on 31st March. 2022 of
Reserves & Surplus Account stood at INR (in '000) 1,06,100.93/-. The Members are advised to refer
the Note 1O(c) as given in the financial statements which forms the part ofthe Annual Report.
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5. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND

(Formerly Known as "Tracxn TechnologiesPrivate Limited")

The provisions of Section 125 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") do not apply as there was no
dividend declared and paid in the previous years.

6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company which
have occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate on the date
of this Report.

7. ANNUAL RETURN

The Annual Return of the Company as on 31st March 2022 is available on the website of the Company
under the following link: https://tracxn.com/investor-relations/financials

8. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.

9. SHARE CAPITAL AND DEBT STRUCTURE

During the year under review, the company has undertaken the following transactions which brought
about changes in the Capital Structure of the Company:

(a) AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL:

The members of the Company at their Extraordinary General Meeting held on 8thJuly 2021,
approved the increase in the Authorised Share capital of the Company from Rs 1,20,00,000/­
(Rupees One Crore Twenty Lakh only) divided into 15,00,000 (Fifteen Lakh) Equity Shares
of Rs 1/- each, 3,18,000 (Three Lakh Eighteen Thousand) Series A Convertible Preference
Shares of Rs 10/- each and 7,32,000 (Seven Lakh Thirty Two Thousand) Preference Shares
of Rs 10/- each to Rs 12,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twelve Crore Only) only divided into
10,95,00,000 (Ten Crore Ninety Five Lakhs) Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each, 3,18,000 (Three
Lakh Eighteen Thousand) Series A Convertible Preference Shares of Rs 10/- each and
7,32,000 (Seven Lakh Thirty Two Thousand) Preference Shares of Rs 10/- each.

(b) ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL:

Conversion of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of the Company
into Equity Shares of the Company: The Board of Directors at their meetings held on 21st
July 2021 and loth December 2021 approved the Conversion of 7,44,137 and 41,164
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) respectively into the Equity Shares of
the Company.

- - - ------ ---
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Issue of Bonus Shares; The Directors recommended the issue and allotment of 9,62,77,012
Shares as Bonus Shares to the Equity Shareholders in the ratio of 52: I, i.e., Fifty-Two fully
paid-up Equity Shares of Rs 1/- each for every Equity Share held, at its meeting held on 21st

July 2021. The Bonus issue was approved by the members at an Extraordinary General
Meeting held on 23rd July 2021 and the bonus shares were allotted to the existing Equity
Shareholders of the Company on 2ndAugust 2021; The Directors also recommended the issue
and allotment of 21,40,528 Shares as Bonus Shares to the holders of Compulsorily
Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS), to be allotted upon conversion of the CCPS into
Equity Shares, in the ratio of 52:1, i.e., Fifty-Two fully paid-up Equity Shares of Rs 1/-each
for every Equity Share held post conversion, at its meeting held on 21st July 2021. The Bonus
issue was approved by the members at an Extraordinary General Meeting held on 23rd July
2021. The underlying 41 164 CCPS were converted into Equity Shares on 10th December
2021, and 21,40,528 Shares were consequently allotted as Bonus Shares such CCPS holders
on lOthDecember 2021.

The Company's issued, subscribed paid up capital after conversion of all CCPS into Equity
Shares issue of Bonus Shares stands at Rs 10,03,10,185/- (Rupees Ten Crore Three Lakhs
Ten Thousand One Hundred and Eighty-Five Only) divided into 10,03,I0,185Equity Shares
ofRe. lI-, which is the total issued and paid-up capital of the Company.

(c) BUY BACK OF SECURITIES

The Company has not bought any of its securities during the year under review.

(d) SWEAT EQUJTY

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.

10. DETAILS OF EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION:

During the year under review, the following Employee Stock Options Scheme(s) were implemented
from time to time:

Particulars Numbers*
Options outstanding at beginning of year (April 1,2021) 8,176,045

Add:
Options Granted during FY 2021-22 1,851,602

Sub-total I 10,027,647

Less:
Options Exercised during FY 2021-22
Options Forfeited during FY 2021-22 483,175
Options Lapsed during FY 2021-22
Sub-total 2 483,175
Total number of options in force at the end ofFY 21-22 (Sub-total 1-2) 9,544,472
Options vested and exercisable at the end of FY 21-22 6,687,805
Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of options
Money realized as a result of exercise of options
* Includes adjustment in the number of options due to bonus issue
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Options Vested during the FY21-22:
An aggregate of792,509 options vested in the respective grantees.

Variation of terms of Options: During the period under review, the Company made certain
changes in its Employee Stock Option Policy 2016 ("ESOP 2016") vide resolution passed by the
members in the meeting dated 30th November 2021 in order to align it with the updated applicable
regulations rolled out by SEBI, i.e. the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 202 I,

Further, there were certain other amendments made in the policy that revolve aroundmodification
in the definition of "fair market value", and addition of the definition of "fair value of the option".

Additionally, changes were made in the ceiling limit ofmaximum number of options to be granted
to employee of the Company, of its Holding or its Subsidiary Company, Group Company,
Associate Company (present or future) under ESOP 2016 in any financial year with inclusion of
"surrender of options" clause in the Policy and a few miscellaneous changes of routine nature.

Exercise price: Re. I

Employee wise details of options granted to:

(a) Key Managerial Personnel:
Emp Name Options Date of Date of Date Department Designation
ID Granted Option Joining of

Grant Exit
6 Prashant 1,07,578* 13-May-2021 o l-Sept- NA Finance Chief Financial

Chandra & I-Mar-2022 2013 Officer

2058 Megha 8,966 I-Mar-2022 16-Jul- NA Finance Company
Bohra 2019 Secretary and

Compliance
Officer

* Includes adjustment Inthe number of options due to bonus Issue

(b) any other employee who receives a grant of options in anyone year of options amounting
to five percent or more of total options granted during that year: NA

(c) identified employees who were granted options, during anyone year, equal to or exceeding
one percent of the issued capital, excluding outstanding warrants and conversions, of the
company at the time of grant.: NA

11. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures, or Associate Companies within
the meaning of the Act.
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12. CONVERSION OF THE COMPANY

The Company was originally incorporated and registered under the Companies Act, 1956 on 11th
August 2012 as a Private Limited Company, Limited by Shares bearing Corporate Identification No.
(CIN) U72200KA2012PTC065294 as certified by the Registrar of Companies, Bangalore.

Subsequently, pursuant to the consent of the Shareholders at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting held
on 8thJuly 2021, the Company was converted from Private Limited Company into a Public Limited
Company. The Registrar of Companies, Bangalore approved this conversion and change in name of
the Company from "Tracxn Technologies Private Limited" to "Tracxn Technologies Limited" vide its
certificate dated 28thJuly 2021 bearing the CIN: U72200KA2012PLC065294.

13. DETAILS OF FILING DRAFT RED HERRING PROSPECTUS WITH SECURITIES AND
EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA

The Company filed a Draft Red Herring Prospectus for listing its Equity Shares on recognized Stock
Exchanges, with the Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") on 12th August 2021.
Subsequently, a revised version was filed with SEBI on 4thDecember 2021 in response to observations
by SEBl.

14. DEPOSITS

During the Year under review, the Company has neither invited nor accepted any public deposits within
the meaning of Section 73 & 74 of the Act read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014.

15. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

As on March 31, 2022, the Board comprised of Eight (8) Directors which includes Two (2) Executive
Directors, One (1) Non - Executive Director, One (1) Nominee Director and Four (4) Independent
Directors. During the year under review, the Company has received Form DIR-8 from all Directors of
the Company as required under the provisions of Section 164 (2) of the Act read with Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 2nd August 2021 had approved the following:

I. ExecutiveDirectors

(a) Appointment of Ms. Neha Singh (DIN 05331824) as a Managing Director and Chairperson of
the Company for a period of Five (5) years w.e.f. 6thAugust 2021 which was subsequently
approved by members at an Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 6thAugust 2021.

(b) Appointment of Mr. Abhishek Goyal (DIN 00423410) as an Executive Director and Vice
Chairman of the Company for a period of Five (5) years w.e.f. 6thAugust 2021 which was
subsequently approved by members at an Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 6thAugust
2021.

n. Independent Directors

2nd Floor, L-248, 17th Cross, Sector 6, HSR Layout, Bengaluru, Karnataka, 560102
Ph: +91 9036090116, Email: hi@tracxn.com. Website: www.tracxn.com CIN: U72200KA2012PLC065294/(8Z~~'~\ftP '~I
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Appointment of Mr. Brij Bhushan (DIN 03624436), Mr. Nishant Yerman (DIN 05128414),
Ms. Payal Goel (DIN 09196284) and Mr. Rohit Jain (DIN 06876642) as Additional
(Independent) Directors' (Category: Non-Executive Directors') for a term of 5 years effective
from 6th August 2021 up to 5th August 2026, which was subsequently approved by members at
an Extraordinary General Meeting held on 6th August 2021.

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company
confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of
the Act along with Rule 6 (3) of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014.

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company possess requisite
qualifications, experience and expertise in finance, accountancy, economics, law etc. and they
hold highest standards of integrity.

The Independent Directors of the Company were appointed on 6th August 2021 for period of
five (5) years. As per Section 150of Act read with Rule 6 (4) of the Companies (Appointment
& Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, the names of the Independent Directors have been
included in the data bank.

III. Non-Executive Director

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 21st July 2021, approved the change in the
designation of Mr. Ravi Chandra Adusumalli (DIN: 00253613) from Nominee Director to
Non-Independent Director w.e.f. 215t July 2021.

IV. Retirement By Rotation

Pursuant to Section 152 of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), Mr. Abhishek Goyal (DIN: 00423410), Director will
retire by rotation as Director at the 10th Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends the re-appointment of Mr. Abhishek
Goyal (DIN: 00423410) as Director ofthe Company.

As stipulated under Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (ICSl), brief resume of the Directors proposed to be re-appointed
is given in the Notice forming part of this Annual Report.

V. Key Managerial Personnel:

In addition to the above, the following appointments of Key Managerial Personnel were made
in FY 2021-22:

(a) The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 25th June 2021, approved the appointment of
Ms. Megha Bohra (M. No. A39158) as a Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. 25th June
2021 and the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 2nd August 2021, approved the
appointment of Ms. Megha Bohra (M. No. A39158) as a Compliance Officer of the Company
w.e.f. 2nd August 2021.
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(b)The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 2nd August 2021, approved the appointment
of Mr. Prashant Chandra, as a Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f. 2nd August 2021.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 2(51) and 203 of the Act read with the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Ms. Neha Singh,
Managing Director and Chairperson, Mr. Abhishek Goyal, Executive Director and Vice
Chairman, Mr. Prashant Chandra, Chief Financial Officer and Ms. Megha Bohra, Company
Secretary & Compliance Officer are the Designated Key Managerial Personnel ("KMP") of
the Company.

Further, the following appointments of Managerial Personnel other than KMP were made in
FY 2021-22:

(a) The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 2nd August 2021, approved the appointment
ofMr. Amit Agarwal, as a Chief Operating Officer of the Company w.e.f. 2nd August 2021.

(b) The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 2nd August 2021, approved the appointment
of Mr. Neeraj Chopra, as a Chief Technology Officer of the Company w.e.f. 2nd August
2021.

(c) The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 2ndAugust 2021, approved the appointment
of Mr. Bhaskar Sharma, as a Chief Product Officer of the Company w.e.f. 2nd August 2021.

16. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board hereby submit its
responsibility Statement:

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

(b) The directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit and loss of the company for that period.

(c) The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this act for safeguarding the
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

(d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

(e) The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

17. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW

The Company conducted eleven (11) Board meetings during the financial year under review.
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S1. Date of Board Board No. of Directors
No. Meeting Strength present
1. 25th June 2021 4 3

2. 7th July 2021 4 3

3. 21stJuly2021 4 3
4. 2nd August 2021 4 3

5. 5th August 2021 4 3

6. 6th August 2021 8 4

7. 12thAugust 2021 8 7

8. 30th November 2021 8 5

9. 2nd December 2021 8 4

10. lO,h December 2021 8 4

11. 17tl1 March 2022 8 5

18. COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEES AN.DNUMBER OF COMMlTTEE MEETINGS

I. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was constituted on 6th August 2021, with the following members:

SI. No. Name of Directors Designation
1. Mr. Rohit Jain Chairperson _(lhdependent Director)
2. Mr. Nishant Yerman Member (Independent Director)
3. Ms. Neha Singh Member (Managing Director)

Subsequently, the Audit Committee was reconstituted on 17th March 2022 and currently
comprises of the following members:

Sl. No. Name of Directors Designation
1. Mr. Rohit Jain Chairperson (lnd~endent Director) J
2. Mr. Brij Bhushan Member (lndependent Director)
3. Ms. Payal Goel Member (Independent Director)
4. Ms. Neha Singh Member (Managing Director)

During the year under review, two (2)Audit Committee meetings were conducted. The details
are given below:

SI. Date of Committee Total number of No. of members
No Meeting members in present

Committee
1. 2nd December 202] 3 3
2. 24th Febru'!!:Y 2022 3 3
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n. Nomination And Remuneration Committee

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted on 6th August 2021 and
comprises of the following members:

SI. No. I Name of Directors Designation
I. I, Ms. Payal Gael Chairperson (Independent Director)
2. J Mr. Brij Shushan Member (Independent Director)
3. I Mr. Nishant Yerman Member (Independent Director).

During the financial year under review, the Company had one (I) Nomination and
Remuneration Committee meetings. The details are given below:

SI. Date of Committee Total number of No. of members
No Meeting members in present

Committee
1. 28th February 2022 3 3

Ill. Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee was constituted on 6th August 2021 and comprises
of the followingmembers:

SI. NO'1' Name of Directors Designation
1. Mr. Brij Bhushan Chairperson (Independent Director)
2. Ms. Neha Singh Member (Managing Director)
3. Mr. Rohit Jain Member (Independent Director)

The Company had one (1) Stakeholders' Relationship Committee Meeting during the financial
year under review. The details are given below:

SI. Date of Committee Total number of No. of members
No Meeting members in present

Committee
1. 31st March 2022 3 3

IV. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was constituted on 6th August 2021 and
comprises of the following members:

SI. No. Name of Directors Designation
l. Ms. Neha Singh Chairperson (Managing Director)
2. Mr. Abhishek Goyal Member (Executive Director)
3. Ms. Payal Goel Member (Independent Director)

Further, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was reconstituted on 17thMarch 2022
and comprises of the following members:
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81.No. Name of Directors Designation
1. Ms. Neha Singh Chairperson (Managing Director)
2. Mr. Abhishek Goyal Member (Executive Director)
3. Mr. Nishant Yerman Member (Independent Director)

Since, the Company does not have any profits in any ofthe preceding three financial years (FY
2020-21, FY 2019-20, and FY 2018-19), no CSR activities are required to be conducted.
Therefore, no meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee in FY 2021-22 was
conducted.

V. Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee was constituted on 6th August 2021 and comprises of the
following members:

SI. No. Name of Directors Designation
1. Ms. Neha Singh Chairperson (Managing Director)
2. Mr. Prashant Chandra Member (Chief Financial Officer)
3. Mr. Am it Agarwal Member (Chief Operating Officer)

No meetings of the Risk Management Committee in FY2021-22 was conducted.

VI. Initial Public Offer ("IPO") Committee

The IPO Committee was constituted on 2nd August 2021 and comprises of the following
members:

SI. No. Name of Directors Designation
I. Ms. Neha Singh Chairperson (Managing Directo~
2. Mr. Abhishek Goyal Member (Executive Director)
3. Mr. Vivek Kumar Mathur Member (Nominee Director)

No meetings of the IPOCommittee in FY 2021-22 was conducted.

VII. Employee Stock Option Plan ("ESOP") Administration Committee

The ESOP Administration Committee comprises of the following members:

SI. No. Name of Directors Designation
1. Ms. Neha Singh Chairperson (Managing Director)
2. Mr. Abhishek Goyal Member (Executive Director)
3. Mr. Prashant Chandra Member (Chief Financial Officer)
4. IMr.Amit Agarwal Member (Chief Operating Officer)

The Company had fifteen (15) meetings' of ESOP Administration Committee during the
financial year under review. The details of the same along with attendance of the members are
given below:
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SI. Date of Committee Total Dumber of No. of members
No Meeting members in present

Committee
1. 1stApril 2021 4 4
2. 19thA_griI 202 I 4 4
3. 11thMay 2021 4 4
4. 131hMay_2021 4 4
5. 28th May 2021 4 4
6. lltil June2021 4 4
7. 22nd June 2021 4 4
8. 6th JuIy2021 4 4
9. 16th July 2021 4 4
10. 14thSeptember 2021 4 4
11. 1sr October 202] 4 4
12. 12thOctober 202] 4 4
13. 28thOctober 2021 4 4
14. 29th October 2021 4 4
15. II thNovember 20211 4 4

19. FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATfON

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company has laid down the oriteria for
performance evaluation of the Board and individual directors including the Independent Directors and
Chairperson covering various aspects of the Board's functioning such as adequacy of the composition
of the Board and its committees, Board Culture, execution and performance of specific duties,
obligations and governance. It includes circuJationof evaluation forms separately for evaluation of the
Board, its Committees, Independent Directors / Non-Executive Directors / Executive Directors and the
Chairman of your Company. The independent directors reviewed the evaluation forms for the
performance of non-independent directors, the Board as a whole and the Chairman of the Company
was evaluated, taking into aocount the views of executive directors and non-exeoutive directors, and
had no significant comments on the same.

The Board reviewed and analyzed the responses to the evaluation forms and accordingly completed
the Board evaluation process for the financial year on 28th June 2022 and expressed their satisfaction
with the evaluation process.

20. VIGil MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism for
directors and employees in confirmation with Section 177(9) of the Act to report concerns about
unethical behavior.

The policy is to provide a mechanism, which ensures adequate safeguards to employees and Directors
from any victimisation 08 raising of concerns of any violations of legal or regulatory requirements,
incorrect or misrepresentation of any financial statement and reports, and so on. The employees of the
Company have the right! option to. report their concern! grievance to the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee. The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal
conduct of business operations.



TRACXN TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(Formerly Known as "Tracxn Technologies Private Limited")

Under the Whistle Blower Policy, confidentiality of those reporting violation(s) is protected and they
shall not be subject to any discriminatory practices. This policy is uploaded on the Company's website
at https:lltracxn.com/investor-relationslcomorate-governance/policies.

21. POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND OTHER
DETAILS:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Act read with the Rules made thereunder and on the
recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Company has in place, a
Nomination & Remuneration Policy. The said policy is available on the website of the Company at
https:lltracxn.com/investor-relations/policies/Nomination-and-Remuneration-Policy.pdf

22. DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

Provisions pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197 (12) of the Act,
read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not
applicable to your Company.

23. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION
186OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

There were no loans given, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186of the
Act during the year under review and hence the said provisions are not applicable.

24. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED
PARTIES

All the Contracts or Arrangements entered into by the company with its related parties during the
financial year were in accordance with the Provisions of the Act. The details of Related Party
Transactions as per the applicable Accounting Standards are appearing in the notes to Financial
Statements.

Further all the Related Party Transactions entered by the Company during the period under review
were in the Ordinary course of business and on arm's length basis. Hence the prescribed details of
Related Party Transactions in FormAOC -2, in terms of Section 134of the Act read with Rule 8 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

25. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, the information on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo are as follows:

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

(i) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:
The Company lays great emphasis on savings in the cost of energy consumption.
Therefore, achieving reduction in per unit consumption of energy is an ongoing exercise
in the Company. The Company does not have any internal generation of power (captive,
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surplus or otherwise). Further, the Company leases its offices on a fully managed service
model. Therefore, the cost of energy consumption is not calculated separately.

(ii) Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:
Presently, the Company does not have any alternate sources of energy for internal
generation of power (captive, surplus or otherwise).

(iii) Capital investment on energy conservation equipment:
The Company has not made any capital investment on energy conservation equipment/so

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

(i) The efforts made towards technology absorption:
The Company is always in pursuit of finding ways and means to improve the
performance, quality and cost effectiveness of its services. The technology used by the
Company is updated as a matter of continuous exercise.

(ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution:
As the Company is in service industry, there is no question of product improvement,
product development or import substitution. Moreover, the Company has not derived any
material benefits in cost reduction against technology absorption.

(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned
from the beginning of the financial year):
The Company has not imported any technology during the last three years reckoned from
the beginning of the financial year.

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development:
The Company does not have a separate independent research and development activity.
As such, no material amount of expenditure was incurred on research and development
activity of the Company.

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS / OUTGO

During the financial year under review, the total Foreign Exchange Inflow and Outtlow during
the year under review is as follows:

(in INR '000)

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21

Inflow 4,47,033.59 3,08,554.93

Outflow 2,617.53 12,627.18

26. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT ANDMATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS,
COURTS AND TRIBUNALS

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts / Tribunals which would
impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.
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27. STATUTORY AUDITORS

In compliance with the Companies (Audit andAuditors) Rules, 2014,Mis. Price Waterhouse Chartered
Accountants LLP, (Registration Number 012754N1N500016) ("PWC"), were appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company at the FourthAnnual General Meeting held on 30thSeptember 2016
for a period of 5 years, to hold office till the conclusion of the Ninth Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 5th August 2021 proposed, subject to
approval of the shareholders the re-appointment ofPWC as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold
office for their second term of 5 (Five) years i.e., from the conclusion of the Ninth AGM till the
conclusion of AGM for financial year 2025-26.

The Company has received a certificate from the Statutory Auditors confirming their eligibility and
willingness for their appointment pursuant to Sections 139(1), 141(2) and 141(3) of the Act read with
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. During the year under review,

(a) the Auditors' Report does not contain any reservation, qualification, disclaimer or adverse
remarks.

(b) the Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to the Audit Committee or the
Board of Directors under Section 143(12)of the Act.

28. INTERNAL AUDITORS

The Company at its Board meeting held on 17thMarch 2022, appointed Mis. Singhvi Dev& Unni LLP,
Chartered Accountants, having Firm Registration Number S200358, as the Internal Auditors of the
Company for the Financial Year 2021-22 and Financial Year 2022-23, pursuant to the provisions of
the Section 138of the Act.

29. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

As per Section 204 (1) of the Act read with rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, certain class of Companies need to conduct Secretarial Audit.
The above-mentioned provisions are not applicable on the Company.

30. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India i.e., SS-l and SS-2with respect to Board Meetings and General Meetings
respectively.

31. COMPLIANCE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

As per the requirements under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 (' POSH Act') and Rules made thereunder, your Company has
constituted Internal Complaints Committees (ICC). While maintaining the highest governance norms,
the Company has appointed the following members of the ICC as below:
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Ms. Megha Bohra - Presiding Officer
Ms. Pooja Ravindra Rao - Member
Mr. Amit Agarwal - Member
Mr. Vaneet Goyal- Member
Ms. Binu Verma - External Member

Further, during the year under review, following is the summary of the complaints received by the ICC
pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013:

the year
NIL

Pending at the Received during
beginning of the year the year

NIL NIL

Disposed of during Unresolved at the
end of the year

NIL

Further to build awareness in this area, the Company has been conducting necessary trainings in the
organization on a continuous basis at all the levels of employees.

32. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) INITIATIVES

The Company has not developed or implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as the
said provisions are not applicable to the Company for the year under review.

33. STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENT AnON OF RISK
MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on I2ihAugust 2021 approved and adopted the Risk
Management Policy to evaluate the internal and external risk specifically faced by the listed entity in
particular including financial, operational, sectoral cyber security risks or any risk as may be
determined by the Committee. This Policy also ensure appropriate measures and processes through
whicn this risk can me minimize and can he identified at the Company has formed Risk Management
policy as per Section 134 (3) (n) of Act which helps in identification of elements of risk, if any, which
in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the Company.

34. DETAIL81N RESPECT OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONfROLS WITH REFERENCE TO
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has in place, adequate systems of Internal Control to ensure compliance with policies
and procedures. It is being constantly assessed and strengthened with new/revised standard operating
procedures and tighter Information Technology controls. Internal Audit of the Company is regularly
carried out. The Audit Reports of Internal Auditors along with their recommendations and
implementation contained therein are regularly reviewed by the management and the Audit Committee,

35. DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING IS PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 ("IBC") DURING THE YEAR WITH ITS
STATlIS AS AT THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR

During the year under review and as at 31st March, 2022, no application was made or any proceedings
were pending under the Insolvency and BankruptcyCode, 2016.
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36. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE
TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING
LOANS FROM BANK OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

During the year under review, no such one-time settlement was done in respect of any loan taken by
the Company from Banks/Financial Institutions.

37. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS UNDER SECTION 148(1) OF THE COMPANIES

ACT, 2013

The provisions of section 148 (I) of the Act are not applicable on our Company and consequently, the
Company is not required to maintain cost records.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Tracxn Technologies Limited (formerly Tracxn Technologies
Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tracxn Technologies Limited
(formerlyTracxnTechnologiesPrivate Limited) ("the Company"),which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement ofChanges in Equity and the Statement ofCash Flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and givea true and fair view in conformitywith the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31,2022, and total comprehensive income (comprising ofloss and other comprehensive
income), changes in equity and its cash flowsfor the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)specified under
Section 143(10)of the Act.Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

4. Wedraw your attention to Note 34 to the financial statements which explains the uncertainties
and the management's assessment of the financial impact due to the lockdown and other
restrictions and conditions related to the COVID-19pandemic situation, for which a definitive
assessment of the impact in the subsequent period is highlydependent upon circumstances as
they evolve.Our opinion is not modified in respect ofthis matter.

Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants UP, 5th Floor, Tower 'D', The Millenia, 1 & 2 Murphy Road, Ulsoor
Bengaluru - 560 008
T:+91 (80) 40795000, F:+91 (80) 40795222

Registered office and Head office: Sucheta Shawano11A Vishnu Digambar Marg. New Delhi 110002

Price Waterhouse (a Partnership Firm) converted into Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP (a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP identity no: LLPIN AAC-5001)
with effect from July 25. 2014. Post its conversion to Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP. its ICAI registration number is 012754N/N500016 (ICAI registration
number before conversion was 012754N)
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Other Information

5. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information ismaterially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If,based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
financial statements

6. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Actwith respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordancewith the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Companyand for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracyand completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

7. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Companyor to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.Those
Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

8. Our objectivesare to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAswill always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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9. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs,we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks ofmaterial misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Under Section 143(3)(i)of the Act,we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectivenessof such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. Ifweconclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidenceobtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

1O.Wecommunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

11.As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143of the Act, we give in
the Annexure Ba statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

12.As required by Section 143(3)of the Act,we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of

our knowledgeand beliefwere necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flowsdealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements complywith the AccountingStandards
specified under Section 133of the Act.
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2022, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2022, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectivenessof such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "AnnexureA".

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Companyhas disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements - ReferNote 28 to the financial statements;

ii. The Companywas not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, 2022 under
the applicable law or accounting standards, as it does not have any material
foreseeable losses on long-term contract. The Company did not have any derivative
contracts as at March 31,2022.

Ill. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31,
2022.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledgeand belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Companyto or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
("Ultimate Beneficiaries")or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries [ReferNote 35(xi)(A)to the financial statements];

(b)The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledgeand belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
[ReferNote 35(xi)(B)to the financial statements]; and

(c) Basedon such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.
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13. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197read with Schedule V to the
Act.

For PriceWaterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm R istration Number: 0127S4N/Nsoo0t..6

~i4iL )~»X?JJM
Place: Bengaluru
Date:August 17,2022

Mohan Danivas SA
Partner
Membership Number: 209136
UDIN:22209136APEKOT1678



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure A to Independent Auditor's Report

Referred to in paragraph 12(0 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Tracxn
TechnologiesLimited (formerlyTracxnTechnologiesPrivate Limited) on the financial statements as of and
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements
under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
Tracxn Technologies Limited (formerly Tracxn Technologies Private Limited) ("the
Company")as ofMarch 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintammg internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting ("the
Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAl").These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI.Those
Standards and the GuidanceNote require that we complywith ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectivelyin all material respects.

4. Our audit involvesperforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness.Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements.

.~-~'
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued
by ICAI. Also refer paragraph 4 of our main audit report.

Place: Bengaluru
Date: August 17,2022

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants:f:iiIJ;;y;;~r;:g
Mohan Danivas SA
Partner
Membership Number: 209136
UDIN: 22209136APEKOT1678
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i. (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible
Assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the
Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, the Company does not own any immovable properties (Refer
Note 5 to the financial statements). Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(i)(c) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets or
both during the year. Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether the
revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of
change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each
class of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible
assets does not arise.

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been
initiated on (or) are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made
thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the Company has
appropriately disclosed the details in its financial statements does not arise.

ii. (a) The Company is in the business of rendering services and, consequently, does not hold
any inventory. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of
Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate from banks and financial institutions and accordingly, the
question of our commenting on whether the quarterly returns or statements are in
agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company does not arise.

lll. The Company has not made any investments, granted secured/ unsecured
loans/ advances in nature ofloans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any parties.
Therefore, the reporting under clause 3(iii) , (iii)(a), (iii)(b),(iii)(c), (iii)(d), (iii)(e) and
(iii)(i) ofthe Order are not applicable to the Company.

IV. The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any
guarantees or security to the parties covered under Sections 185 and 186. Therefore, the
reporting under clause 3(iv) ofthe Order are not applicable to the Company.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there
under to the extent notified.
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VI. TheCentral Government of India has not specifiedthe maintenance ofcost records under
sub-section (1)of Section 148of the Act for any of the servicesof the Company.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Companyexamined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues in respect of provident fund though there has been a slight
delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
employees' state insurance, tax deducted at source under income tax, goods and services
tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.
Also, refer note 28 to the financial statements regarding management's assessment on
certain matters relating to provident fund.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Companyexamined by us, there are no statutory dues ofgoods and servicestax, provident
fund, employees' state insurance, tax deducted at source which have not been deposited
on account of any dispute. The particulars of income tax as at March 31,2022 which have
not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Name of the Nature Amount Amount paid Period to Forum where
statute of dues (Rs. in under protest" which the the dispute is

thousands) (Rs. in amount pending
thousands) relates

Income Tax Income Rs.2,270·74 Rs.2,270·74 2013-14 Assessing
Act, 1961 tax Officer

* Includes Rs. 340.12 paid under protest and Rs. 1,930.62 adjusted from the refund
receivablefor the financial year ended March 31,2018.

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Companyexamined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income TaxAct, 1961,that has not been recorded in the books of account.

ix. (a) As the Company did not have any loans or other borrowings from any lender during the
year, the reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) Accordingto the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not obtained any term loans.

(d) Accordingto the information and explanations givento us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the
Companyhas not raised funds on short term basis.

(e) Accordingto the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by
us, we report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companies during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(ix)(e) and 3(ix) (f) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.
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x. (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Companyhas not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi. (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according
to the information and explanations givento us, wehave neither comeacross any instance
of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the
year, nor havewe been informed of any such case by the Management.

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according
to the information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12)of the Act,
in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014was not required to be filedwith the Central Government.Accordingly,the reporting
under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according
to the information and explanations given to us, and as represented to us by the
management, no whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the
Company.Accordingly,the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi Companyand the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to
it, the reporting under clause 3(xii) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

Xlll. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian
Accounting Standard 24 "Related Party Disclosures" specified under Section 133of the
Act.

xiv.(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by
us.

xv. TheCompanyhas not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of
Section 192of the Act under clause 3(xv)of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi.(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IAof the ReserveBankof
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial/housing finance activities
during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company,
the Group does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, however,
separately evaluated whether the information provided by the management is accurate
and complete. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

XVll. The Company has incurred cash losses ofRs.1O,731.75 thousands in the financial year and
of Rs.130,436.64 thousands in the immediately preceding financial year.

XVlll. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
the reporting under clause (xviii) is not applicable.

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios (Also refer Note 31 to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates of
realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Act
are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of
Standalone Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause
has been included in this report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartere

Place: Bengaluru
Date: August 17, 2022

Partner
Membership Number: 209136
UDIN :22209136APEKOT1678



Tracxn Technologies Limited (formerly known as Tracxn Technologies Private Limited)
CIN: U72200KA2012PLC065294
BALANCE SHEET
(All amount in INR thousands, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No. AS.I:
31 March2022

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Current tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

2,671.21 2,674.62

6
8
9

45,261.61 25,662.17
104.44

47,932.82 28,441.23

Current assets
Financial assets
i. Investments
ii. Trade receivables
iii. Cash and cash equivalents
iv. Other financial assets

Other current assets
Total current assets
Total assets

10(C)

164,049.98 167,568.19

71,721.83 56,853.94

31,868.05 18.007.68

221,060.77 211,521.77

3,511.99 2,194.66

492,212.62 456,146.24
540,145.44 484,587.47

100,310.18 1,107.34
7,853.01

106,100.93 213,271.42

206,411.11 222,231.77

7(a)
7(b)
7(c)
7(d)
9

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital
Instruments entirely equity In nature
Other equity
Reserves and surplus
Total equity

10(a)
10(b)

L1ABILmES
Non-current liabilities
Contract liabilities
Employee benefit obligatiOns
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

I. Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises

and small enterprises; and
(b) Total outstanding dues other than (a) above

ii. Other financial liabilities
Contract liabilities
Employee benefit obligatiOns
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

13
12

1,112.23
34,159.29

940.21
27,851.91

35,271.52 28,792.12

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 17 August 2022

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 17 August 2022

11(a) 38.69 99.67

11(a) 6,609.19 14,057.05

11(b) 1,861.64 1,420.54

13 254,357.96 194,112.12

12 16,150.81 12,979.82

14 19,444.52 10,894.38

298,462.81 233,563.58
333,734.33 262,355.70
540,145.44 484,587.47

The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of

even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Tracxn Technologies Limited (formerly known as

'~ les "" ... u:;",v,e ~_.""i ....
Partner
Membership Number: 209136
Place: Bengaluru
Date: 17 August 2022

Managing Director
DIN: 053318 4

Director
DIN: 00423410

Chief Financial OffiCer

~+~~.
Megha Bohra
Company Secretary
M. No. A39158



Tracxn Technologies Limited (formerly known as Tracxn Technologies Private Limited)
CIN:U72200KA2012PLC065294
STATEMENTOF PROFIT AND LOSS
(All amount in INR thousands, except share and per share data, unlessotherwise stated)

Particulars Note Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

The above Statement of Profit and Lossshould be read in conjunction with the accompanyingnotes.

Income
Revenuefrom operations
Other income
Other gains/(Iosses) - net
Total income

Expenses
Employeebenefit expense
Depreciationexpense
Other expenses
Total expenses

(Loss) before tax and exceptional items

ExceptionalItems - IPO Expenses

(Loss) before tax

Income tax expense:
- Current tax
- DeferredTax

(Loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassifiedto profit or loss
- Gain/ (loss) on remeasurementof post employment benefit
obligations

- Income tax relating to above
other comprehensive (loss)! income for the year, net of
tax
Total comprehensive (loss) for the year

Earnings per equity share [nominal value per share: INR
1 (2021: INR l}l
Basicearnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our
report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
FirmRegistration Number: 012754N/N500016

Ch Account ~~)J)Jtt2

Partner
MembershipNumber: 209136
Place:Bengaluru
Date: 17 August 2022

15
16 (a)
16 (b)

634,535.12
10,963.48
6,080.97

437,786.71
10,233.50

109,397.38
651,579.57 557,417.59

17
18
19

585,710.25
1,456.72

67,981.38

538,130.90
2,523.15

70,240.14
655,148.35 610,894.19

(3,568.78) (53,476.60)

20 44,907.93

(48,476.71) (53,476.60)

21
21

48,476.71) (53,476.60)

12 (44.00) 11,949.47

(44.00) 11,949.47

48,520.71} 41,527.13}

30

(0.48) (0.55)
(0.48) (1.52)

Place:Bengaluru
Date: 17 Au ust 2022

Place:Bengaluru
Date: 17 Au ust 2022



Tracxn Technologies Limited (formerly known as Tracxn Technologies Private Limited)
CIN:U72200KA2012PlC065294
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(All amount in lNR thousends, except share and per-share data, unless otherwise stated)

Ca-shFlow from Operating Activities:
Net (loss) before Income Tax
Adj~stment for:
Depredation expense
Net (gain)/lo55 on disposal OfProperty, plantand equlprnent
Net gains on sale of investments

Net fair value gains on flnancial ,assets measured at fair value through ,woflt
or lOSS

(55,476.60).(48,476.71)

18
16(b)
16(b)
16(b)

1,456.72
169.35

(4,560.69)
(914.1.0)

2,523.15
442.04

(5,493.70)
(849.99)

16(b) ·(!04,634A8)
Fair value (galn)/ loss on (CPS, measured at f~ir value through proflt or loss

Interest em income tax refund
'Interest income from oank ceposns measured 'at amortised cost
Employee stock option expense
Impairment loSs/ (reversal) en financial assets
UnrealisedExchangeDifference(net)
Operating loss before working capital changes
M)ustment for:
(Increa~)1 decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)1decrease in other financial assets
(Increase)! decrease in .other assets
Increase I (decrease) in trade pavables
increase I (decrease) In contract liabilities
Increase! (decrease) in employee benefit obltqations
Increase I (decrease) in otner nnanctat uetantes
Increase? (decrease) in other lia,bi!ities
Cash generation from Operations
Income taxespaid (net of refunds received, including interest thereon)
Net Cash Flow froml (us~ -in) Operating Activities

16(a)
16(a)
17
19

(265.22)
(9,889.07)
27,.27&,29
(8n;09)
(4·\1.92)

(10,57628)
32,700.05
4,042.56
459.73

(25,699.37) (145,642.59)

(19,216;59)
(20.34)

(1,212.90)
(~,S08.84)
60,417.86
9.,434.38
441.11

8,550.14

(10,78].59)
7,524.56
948.37

9,590.]1
70,418.53
·10,487,76

280.61
(984.12)

(58,.163.76)25,185.45
(2,433.02)(19,599.44)

(60,596.78)5,586.01

Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Payments Iorpurchase of property, plant-andequiprnent
Proceeds from sale or property, plant-and equipment
Funds, invested In bank seposits
Proceeds from sale. of investments
Payments for purchase of investments in mutua) funds
Interest received
Net cash inflow !(outflow) from investing acnvmes

(1,622.66)
"102.58

(199,000.32)
"187,427-63
(533,962.07)

(9,518.66)
664,193.00
(655,200.00)
10,576.28

54,567.828,427.96

Cash Flow from Financing Activitie.s:
Proceeds from issue of CCPS
Net cash infl'ow from financing activities

1,873.77
1,873.77

(4,155.19)14,013.97Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Gash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalent5as at beglnnin9of the year
Effects of exch~nge- rate changes on cash 'and cash equivalerits
Cashand CashEquivalents as at end of the year

22,955.92
(793.05)

lM07 ..68
(153.60)

7(c)

18,007.6831,868.057(c)
No'n-c3sh financing activities
- Modificationof CCPS 1,588,909.3510(b)(i1ij

Cash and cash equivalents comprtse of [Refer n-ate l(c)}:

Cash' on Hand
Balance with banks
In current accounts
In EXchange Earners foreign.Currency (EEFC) accounts

Total

9.91

16,-773)5
15,074.55

5,001.17
12,996.60.

18,007:6831,868.05

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be reap in conjunction with the accorupanvinq notes.

This is the Statement of Cash Flows'feferred toin our report
of even date,

for and. on behalf Of the Board' of Directors

Mohan enfvas S A
Partner
MembershipNumber: 209.136
Place: Benqaluru
Date: 17August20.22

Place: Bengaluf_u.
Date; II Au ust 2022

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 17Au ust 20.22



Tracxn Technologies Limited (formerly known as Tracxn Technologies Private Limited)
CIN:U72200KA2012PLC065294
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(All amount in INR thousands, except shareand per sharedata, unlessotherwisestated)

A. Equity share capital:

" .""_~ ,:parct;iculiu5 _ If)lotes Anlo:unt. JI
As at 1 April 2020 1,107.34 -:
Changesin equity sharecapital _

As at 31 March 2021 1,107.34'
Chanqesduring the penoo due to conversionof CCPSInto Equity 10(aV 78S.3(} ./

Bonussharesissuedduring the year 10(a 98,417.54'
As at 31 March 2022 100,310.18 <

B. Instruments entirely equity in nature
Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Share Capital:

~0 '" *'
~ ~a~iula~ ,. ~]. '~otfls~ ,!\WI Antoont'

As at 1 April 2020 918.71 "
Changesduring the year on eceount.orrnoditlcaticn of CCPS 10(b)~ 6,934.30, .
As at 31 March 2021 7,853.01.
Changesduring the year due to conversionof CCPSinto Equity 10(a)"" (7,853.01) .
As at 31 March 2022 -
C. other eauitv

Sec:qrities !;mployee Retain~,Piuticular,s stoo~optic)JI if, tT:~1 C:itl1~rElgl.ii!=Yp.r;..~mlunr _~reserv~" earnings:
- - ""As at 1 April 2020 114,163.66 190,653.29 (1,659,269.74 (1,354,452.79)
(Loss)for the year

_ - (53,476.60)1-,., (53,476.60)_..
other comprehensiveincome - - 11,949.47.... 11,949.47
Total comprehensive (1055) for the year - - (41,527.13) ",/ (41,527.13) /
Employeestock option expensefor the year - 27,276.29/-

-,.
27,276.29 •

Changesduring the year on account of modification of CCPS 1,008,735.38/ - 573,239.67 1,581,975.05
[refer note lO(b)(vl]
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,122;899.04 217,929.58 (1,127,557 .20)" 213,271.42
(Loss)for the year - (48,476;71) (48,476.71) -

Other comprehensiveincome - - (44.00), (44.00).

Total comprehensive (1055) for the year - - (48,520.71), (48,520.71)

Employeestock option expensefor the year
_ 32,700.05 - 32,700.05

Changesdue to conversionof CCPSinto Equity [refer note 7,067.71 - _ 7,067.71
10(a)(ix)]
Reservesused in issueof Bonusshares [refer note 10(a)(ix)] (98,417.54) - _ (98,417.54) .;

Balance asat 31 March 2022 1,031,549.21 250,629.63 (1,176,077.91) 106,100.93

The aboveStatementof Changesin Equity should be read in conjunctionwith the accornpanvmonotes.

This is theStatement of Changesin Equitv referred to in
our report or evendate.

Forand on behalf of the Boardof Directorsof

Partner
MembershipNumber: 209136
Place:Bengalunu
Date: 17August 2022

Place:Betlgaluru
Date: 17August 2022

Place:Benqaluru
Date: 17 AUgust2022



Tracxn Tectmologies Limited (formerly known as Tracxn Technologies Private Limited)
CIN: U.72200KA2012PLC06S294
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 General information

TracxnTechnologiesLimited (formerly known as Tracxn TechnologiesPrivate Limited) (the "Company")was incorporated as a private limited
Compa~y.on 11 August 2012 under the provisionsof the CompaniesAct 1956.The Companyconverted from a Private Limited Companyto a
PublicLimitedCompany,pursuant to a specialresolutionpassedin the extraordinarygeneJQImeetingof the shareholdersof the Companyheldon
7 July 2021 and consequentlythe name of the Companyhas been changedto ''TracxnTechnologiesLimited" pursuant to a fresh certificateof
incorporationdated 28 July 2021 issuedby the Registrarof Companies. '

The Companyoffers Tracxn 'Platform' on a subscriptionbasisto global customerbase; that helpsVenture Capital,PrivateEquity Investors and
CorporateDevelopmentteamsto find startupsacrosshighly investablesectorsbytracking andcuratingdata of millionsof startups.

2 Basis of preparation and Significant Accounting Policies

This note providesa list of the signifitant accountmqpoliciesadopted in the preparationof these financial statements.Thesepolicieshavebeen
consistentv appliedto all the periods/ years presented,unlessotherwisestated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

i) Compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

The financialstatementscomplyin all materialaspectsWithIndian AccountingStandards(hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS')as notified under
Section 133 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 Cthe Act') [Companies(Indian Accountingstandards) Rules, 2015, as amended] and other related
provisionsof the Act.

ii) Historical cost convention
The FinancialStatementshavebeen preparedon a historicalcost basis,except for the following:
(a) certainflnanda: assetsand liabilitiesthat are measuredat fpir value; and
(b) Employeesharebasedpayments

2.2 Segment reporting

Operatingsegmentsare reported in a mannerconsistentwith the internal reportingprovided to the chief operatingdecisionmaker(CODM).

The Board of directors of the Company assessesthe ftnanctal performance and position of the Company and make strategic decisions.
Accordingly,the Boardhasbeen identifiedas the chief operatingdecisionmaker. Refernote 26 for segment information presented.

2.3 Foreign currency translation

i) Functional and presentation currency
Items includedin The FinancialStatementsof the Companyare measuredusing the currencyof the primary economicenvironment in which the
Companyoperates(' the functional currency').The FinancialStatementsare presentedin Indian Rupee(INR), which is the Company'sfunctional
and presentationcurrency.

ii) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transaCtions.Foreign
exchangegains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactionsand from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominatedin foreign currenciesat year end exchangeratesare recognisedin the Statementof Profit and Loss.

Foreignexchangegainsand lossesare presentedin the Statementof Profit and Losson a net basiswithin other gains/ (losses).

2.4 Revenue from contract with customers

i) Sale of services
The Company receives subscription revenue from rendering of services through its platform. Revenue from contracts with customers is
recoqnizedwhen servicesare rendered to the customerat an amount that refiectsthe considerationentitled in exchangefor those services.The
Companyrecognizessubscriptionrevenuesover time wherein the customersimultaneouslyreceivesand consumesthe benefitsprovided by the
Company.The progress is measuredusing the.output method which measuresrevenue by comparing 'time elapsed' to the 'total subscription
period.

Revenueis recognised,net of goods and servicestax, when no significantuncertaintyexists regardingthe amount of the considerationthat will
be derived from renderinq the service. In few cases, the Companyprovides refunds against revenue received from certain customers.The
Companyestimatesthe refund liability on the basisof their past experienceand future expectation, as tnat is the amount of considerationfor
which the.entity does not expect to be entitled.

The invoicingfor the servicesis done upfront irrespectiveof the duration of the subscriptionwith a general credit term of 10-30 days, which is
consistentwith market practice.The Companydoes not adjust the transactionpricesfor any time value of moneyas the transferd'f the promised
servicesto thecustomer and paymentby the customerdoesnot generallyexcee€lone year.



Tracxn Technologies Limited (formerly known as Tracxn Technologies Private Limited)
CIN:U72200KA2012PLC065294
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ii) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer sen/ices to a customer for which the Companyhas received consideration (or an amount of
considerationisdue) from the customer. Contract liabilitiesare recognisedas revenuewhen the Companyperforms under the contract. Contract
Liabilitiesare disclosedin Note 13.

2.5 Income tax

The incometax expenseor credit for the period is the tax payableon the current period'staxable incomebasedon the applicableincometax rate
adjustedby changesin deferred tax assetsand liabilitiesattributable to temperarydifferencesand to unusedtax losses,if any.

The current ihcome tax charge is calculatedon the. basisof the tax laws enactedor substantivelyenacted at the end of the reporting period.
Managementperiodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns witlil respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretationand considerswhether it is probablethat a taxation authoritywill acceptan uncertaintax treatment.The Companymeasuresits tax
balanceseither basedon the most likely amount or the expectedvalue, dependingon whichmethod.providesa better predictionof the resolution
of the uncer:tainty.

Deferredincometax is provided in full, usingthe liability method, on temporary differencesarisingbetween the tax basesof assetsand liabilitie.s
and their carryingamounts in The FinancialStatements.Deferred incometax is determinedusing tax rates (and laws) that havebeenenactedor
substantiallyenactedby the end of the reporting period and are expectedto applywhen the related deferred incornetax asset is realisedor the
deferred incometax liability is settled.

Deferredtax assetsare recognisedfor all deductlb'e temporary differencesand unusedtax losses,if any, only if it is probable that future taxable
amountswill be availableto utilize those temporarydifferencesand losses.

Deferred tax assetsand liabilities are ortset when there is a legally enforceableright to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balancesrelate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the Companyhas a legally
enforceableright to offSetand intends either to settle on a net basis,or to realizethe assetandsettle the liabilityslrnultaneouslv.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensiveincome or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
rf;H:;nprrivpfv.

2.6 Leases

Asa lessee:
Leasesare recognisedas a Right-of-use asset and a correspondinqliability at the date at which the leasedasset is availablefor use by the
company.

Assetsand liabilitiesarising from a leaseare initially measuredon a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
fOllowingleasepayments:
• Axedpayments(including in substancefixed payments),lessany incentivesreceivable
• variableleasepaymentsthat are basedon an indexor a rate, initially measuredusingthe indexor rate as at the commencementdate
• amountsexpectedto be payableby the companyunder residualvalueguarantees
• the exercisepriceof a purchaseoption if the companyis reasonablycertain to exercisethat option, and
• paymentsof penaltiesfor terminating the lease, if the leaseterm reflectsthe companyexercisingthat option.

Extensionand termination options are induced in many of tile leases.In determining the lease term the managementconsidersall facts and
circumstancesthat create an economic incentive to exercisean extensionoption, or not exercisea termination opton. Leasepayments to be
m-ade.under reasonablycertain extensionopbonsare also included in the measurementof the liability. The leasepaymentsare discountedusing
the company'sincremental borrowing rate, which is the rate that the Companywould have to pay to borrow the funds necessaryto obtain an
assetof similarvalue to the riqht-of-useasset in a similareconomicenvironmentwith similar terms, securityand conditions.

If a readily observableamortising loan rate is availableto the Company,(through recent'financingor market data) which has a ·similarpayment
profile to the lease,then the Companyusesthat rate as the incrementalborrowing rate.

Leasepaymentsare allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to Statement of Profit and Lossover the lease
periodso as to producea constantperiodic rate of interest on the remainingbalanceof the liability for eachperiod.

Leasepaymentsthat represent payments basedon actual utilisationof common facilitiesQf the leasedasset are recognisedih the Statementof
Profitand Lossas andwhenthey are incurred.

Right-of-useassetsare measuredat C0Stcomprisingthe following:
• the amountof initial measurementOfleaseliability
• any leasepaymentsmadeon or before the commencementdate lessany leaseincentivesreceived
• any initial direct costs,and
• restorationcosts

Right-oF-useassetsare generallydepreciatedover the shorter of the asset'suseful life and the leaseterm on a straight-linebasis.

Paymentsassooateswith short-term leasesare recognisedon a straight-linebasisasan expensein the Statementof Profit and LoSS.Short-term
leasesare leaseswith a term of 12 months or less.The leasecontractsalso includenon -leasecomponentswhich are chargedto the Statement
of Profitand toss asand when incurred.
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2.7 Financial instruments

A) Initial recognition and measurement
The Companyrecognisesfinancial assets and financial liabilities when it becomesa party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
financialassetsand liabilitiesare recognisedat fair value on initial recognition.Transactioncoststhat are directiy attributable to the acquisitionor
issueof financialassetsand financial liabilities(other than financialassetsand financialliabilitiesat fair value through profit and loss)are addedto
or deductedfrom the fair value on initial recognition.

8) Subsequent measurement
i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Assetsthat are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measuredat amortisedcost. Interest incomefrom these financialassetsis includedin the statementof profit and loss usingthe effective interest
rate method.Any gain or lossarisingon derecognitionis recogniseddirectiy in the statementof profit and loss. Impairment lossesare presented
in the statementof profit and loss. Financialassetsat amortisedcost comprisesof trade receivables,securitydeposits,cashand cashequivalents
andother financialassets.

a) Trade receivables:

Trade receivablesare amountsdue from customersfor goodssold or servicesperformedin the ordinary courseof business.Trade receivablesare
recognisedinitially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing components, when they are
recognisedat fair value. The Companyholdsthe trade receivableswith the objective to collect the contractualcashflows and therefore measures
them subsequentlyat amortisedcost usingthe effective Interestmethod lessimpairmentloss, if any.

b) Cash and cash equivalents

Cashand cashequivalentsincludescashon hand, other short-term, highly liquid investmentswith original maturitiesof three monthsor lessthat
are readilyconvertibleto knownamountsof cashandwhich are subject to an insignificantrisk of changein value.

2.7 Financial instruments (continued)

c) Other financial assets:
On initial recognition,Other financialassetsare measuredat fair value, and subsequently,measuredat the amortisedcost, less impairmentif any.
Lossarisingfrom impairment, if any is recognisedin the Statementof Profit and Loss.

ii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
The Companyholdscertain investmentsin mutual fundswhichare subsequentlymeasuredat fair value through profit or loss.

iii) Financial liabilities measured at amortised costs
Financialliabilitiesare subsequentlycarried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The Company'sflnandal liabilities consist of
trade payablesandOther financial liabilities.
Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and servicesprovided to the Companyprior to the end of financial year, which are unpaid. The
amountsare unsecuredand are usuallypaidwithin the credit period.Trade andother payablesare presentedas current liabilitiesunlesspayment
is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognisedinitially at their fair value and subsequentlymeasuredat amortised
cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payablesmaturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying
amountsapproximatefair valuedue to the short maturity of these instruments.

C) Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss
Financialliabilitiesat fair value through profit and loss includefinancialliabilitiesdeSignatedupon initial recognitionas at FairValueThrough Profit

or Loss(FVTPL).

Financialliabilitiesdesignatedupon initial recognitionat fair value through profit and lossare desiqnatedas suchat the initial date of recognition,
and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilitiesdeslqnatedas FVTPL,fair value gains or lossesattributable to changesin own
credit risk are recognisedin other comprehensiveincome(OCI). Thesegains/ lossare not subsequentlytransferred to profit and loss. However,
the Companymay transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
Statementof Profit and Loss. Financial liabilities measuredat fair value through profit or loss consist of Compulsorilyconvertible cumulative
preferenceshares.[Also refer note 10(b)(v)]

(,~f:/I:t~,-...;..;;..:.;;._:;;.;..~:'_"~'~"
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Compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares
The Company has assessedthe debt/equity classification for compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares (CCPS)based on the
requirementsin Ind AS32. Basedon the terms and conditionsof issueof certainCCPS,the investorshavean option to put 'theCCPSbackto the
Companyfor cashthrough a buy back in the event the Companyis unable to providean exit to the CCPSholders through a Qualified IPOor a
strategicsale.As the failure to complete a qualified publico.fferingis outside the control of the Company,it meets the definition of a c.ontingent
settlementevent under IND AS.32, resulting in suchCCPSpeingdassifiedas a financialliability. Further, the holders'option,to. convert CCPSinto
equity snares is subject to variation due to the anti-dilution clause. Accordingly, the conversion option is to be dassitied as an embedded
derivativeand shouldbe separatedfrom the hast debt. The Companyhas taken the option to classifythe entire CCPSat fair value through profit
or loss insteadaf accountinqfor the hast debt and the embeddedderivativeseparately.The dividendsen.these CCPSare recognisedas finance
expensesin the statementof profit and lass.

0) Oerecognition

A financial liability is derecagnisedwhen the abligatian under the liability is dischargedor cancelledor expires.When an existing finarrdal liability
is replacedby another from the same lender on SUbstantiallydifferent terms, Orthe terms of an existing liability are substantiallymodified,such
an exchangeor modificationis treated as the derecognitionof the origina.lliability and the recognitionof a new liability/equity. The difference in
the respectivecarryingamounts is recognisedin the statementof profit or loss.

The Cempanydereccqntses a financial asset when the cantractual rights to the cash flews from the financial asset expire er it transfers the
financialassetand the transferqualifiesfor derecognitionunder Ind AS109.

E) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financialassetsand financialliabilitiesare offset and the net amount is reported In the balancesheet if there is a legallyenforceableright to offset
the recognisedamountsand there is.an intention to settle on a net basisor to realize the assetsand settle the liabilities simultaneously.The
legallyenforceableright must not be contingent on future eventsarid must be enForceablein the normal courseof businessand in the event of
default, insalvencyor bankruptcyof the Companyor the co.unterparty.

F) Impairment
The Cempanyrecognisesloss allowancesusing the expectedcredit loss (ECl) model fer the financial assetswhich are not fair valued throuqh
profitor loss. loss allowancefor trade receivableswith no significantfinancingcomponentis measuredat an amount equal to lifetime ECL.Forall
other financialassets,expectedcredit lossesare measuredat an amountequal to the 12month ECl, unlessthere has beena Significantincrease
m credit risk from initial recognition in which case thoseare measuredat lifetime ECL.The amount of expectedcredit losses(or reversal) that is
requiredto adjust the lossallowanceat the reporting date to the amount that is requiredto be recognised,is recognisedas an impairmentgain or
loss in the statementof proflt and loss.

G) Interest income

Interest income is recognisedUSingeffective interest method..The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discountsestimated future Cosh
receiptsthrough'theexpectedlife of the financtalassetto.the grosscarryingamountOfa financialasset,

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

All items ,af property, plant and equipment are stated at historicalcost lessaccumulateddepreciatton.Historicalcost includesexpenditure that is
directlyattributable to the acquisitionof the assets.

Advancespaid towards the acquisitionof propertv, plant and equipmentoutstandingat each BalanceSheetdate is Classifiedas capital advances
underother non-currentassetsand the cost of assetsnet readyto.usebefore suchdate are disclosedunder 'Capitalwork-in-proqress',

Subsequentcosts are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognisedas a separateasset. as appropriate, enly when it is probable that
future economicbenefits associatedwith the item will flow to the Companyand the COStof the item can be measured reliably. The carrYing
amount of any componentaccountedtor as a separate asset is derecognisedwhen replaced.All other repairsand maintenanceare charged to
profit or lossduring the reporting period in which they are inwrred.

Deoreciation methods, estimated useful life andres/dual value:
Depreciationis calculatedusing the written down value method to allocatetheir cost, net of their residualvalues,over their estimateduseful life
asfellows,

Management estimate of useful life
Computerequipments:3 years
Officeequipments:1-5 years

Useful lire as per Schedule ff
Computerequipments:3'years
Officeequipments:5 years

The assets' residual value and useful life are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset's carrying
amount is written down immediately to its recoverableamount if the asset'scarryingamount is greater than its estimated recoverableamount.
Gainsand losseson disposalsare determined by comparingproceedswith carrying amount. These are includredin the Statementof Prafit and
loss within other galns/ (losses),



Tracxn Technologies Limited (formerly known as Tracxn Technologies Private Limited)
CIN:U72200KA2012PLC065294
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.9 Intangible Assets

Software:

Operating software is capitalised along with the related fixed assets. Costs associated with maintaining the software are recognised as an expense
as Incurred. Development costs. that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlled by
the company are recognrsed as Intangible assets where the following criteria are met:
• it is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use
• management intends to complete the software and use or sell it
• there is an ability to use or sell the software
• it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic benefits
• adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software are available, and
• the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably measured.
Amortisation methods and Periods:
The Company amortizes software with a finite useful life using the straight line method over three years and the useful life is reviewed at end of
each reporting period, and adjusted if appropriate. The amortisation method and the estimated useful life of intangible assets are reviewed at
each reporting period.

2.1 Impairment of assets

Assessment is done whenever there is an event or change in Circumstances as to where there is any indication that an asset (tangible and
intangible) may be impaired. For the purpose of asseSSingimpairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of asset, is considered as a cash generating unit If
any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset; cash generating unit is made. Assets whose carrying value
exceeds their recoverable amount are written down to the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an
asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication
that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have decreased. Assets that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.1 Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settie the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settiement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to anyone item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settie the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period. In case of long term provisions, they are disclosed by discounting at the. rate used to determine. the present value,
which is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The Increase In
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or _a present Oblrgati~,
that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settie or a relrable estimate of e
amount cannot be made.

2.1 Fair value measurement

Fair value' is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paidd~~:ans;~~: ~::~~ ~~~h~;~:~ ~~~~~~nh~::~:~s ~~~:~ ~::~i~~ts ~~
the measurement date In the ormclpal or, In Its absence, the most a ~ b I~ s for which fair value is measured or disclosed in The Financial
value of a liability reflects Its non-performance risk. All adssetsba~d I~ :,~:Sbased on the lowest level Input that is significant to the fair value
Statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, escrr e as 0 ,

measurement as a whole: . .. .' I ts or liabilities
- Levell - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices In active ma,rke~ for l~e;tl~\a~~genificant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
_ Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest eve mpu a

~b~:~~~ Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

2.1 Employee benefits

i) Short term obligations: d f th
. . . nefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the en 0 . e

Liabilities for wages and salaries, Includrng non-monetary be . d l ct of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period
period in which the employees render the related service are recognrse . In respe tti d The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit

d at the amounts expected to be paid when the Irabllrtles are se e .and are measure
obligation in the Balance Sheet.
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ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilitiesfor earned leaveare not expectedto be settledwholly within 12 monthsafter the end of the period in which the employeesrender
the relatedservice.They are thereforemeasuredat the presentvalueof expectedfuture paymentsto be made in respectof servicesprovidedby
employeesup to the end of the reporting period uSingthe projected unit credit method. The benefitsare discountedusing the market yields at
the endof the reportingperiod on governmentbondsthat haveterms approximatingto the terms of the relatedobligation. Remeasurementsasa
result of experienceadjustments and changes in actuarial assumptionsare recognisedin statement of profit and loss. Past service costs are
recognisedImmediatelyIn the Statementof Profit and Loss.

The obligationsare presentedas current liabilities in the BalanceSheet if the entity does not havean unconditionalright to defer settlement for at
leasttwelvemonthsafter the reporting period, regardlessof when the actualsettlement is expectedto occur.

iii) Post employment obligations:
The Companyoperatesthe following post-employmentschemes:

a) Defined benefit plans (gratUity)

The Companyprovidesfor qratuitv, a defined benefit plan coveringeligibleemployeesin accordancewith the Paymentof Gratuity (Amendment)
Act, 2018. The Gratuity Plan provtdes a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapadtation or termination of
employment,of an amount basedon the respectiveemployee'ssalaryand the tenure of employment.

The liability or asset recognised in the BalanceSheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by an
Independentactuaryusingthe projected unit credit method.

The presentvalueof the defined benefit obligation is determinedby discountingthe estimatedfuture cashoutflows by referenceto marketyields
at the end of the reporting periodon governmentbondsthat haveterms approximatingto the terms of the relatedobligation.

The net interest cost is calculatedby applying the discount rate to the net balanceof the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan
assets.This cost is includedin employeebenefit expensein the Statementof Profit and Loss.

Remeasurementgainsand lossesarising from experienceadjustmentsand changesin actuarialassumptionsare recognisedin the period in which
they occur, directiy in other comprehensiveincome. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the
BalanceSheet.

Changesin the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendmentsor curtailments are recognised immediately in
profit or lossas pastservicecost.

b) Defined contribution plan such as provident fund and employees state insurance

The Companypays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds and employees state insurance funds as per local
regulations.The Companyhas no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accountedfor as
definedcontributionplansand recognisedasemployeebenefit expensewhen they are due.

iv) Bonus plans
The Companyrecognisesa liability and an expensefor bonuses.The Companyrecognisesa provisionwhere contractuallyobligedor where there
is a past practicethat hascreateda constructiveobligation.

v) Share-based payments
The fair value of options granted under the Tracxn EmployeeStock Option Plan2016" is recognisedas an employee benefits expensewith a
correspondingincreasein equity. The total amount to be expensedis determinedby referenceto the fair value of the optionsgranted:
• includinganymarket performanceconditions(e.g., the entity's share price)
• excludingthe impact of any service and non-market performancevesting conditions(e.g. profitability, salesgrowth targets and remainingan
employeeof the entity over a specifiedtime period), and
• includingthe impactof any non-vestingconditions(e.g. the requirementfor employeesto saveor hold sharesfor a specftc periodof time).
The total expenseis recognisedover the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specifiedvesting conditionsare to be satisfied.
At the end of eachreporting period, the entity revisesits estimatesof the numberof options that are expected to vest basedon the non-market
vesting and service conditions. It recognisesthe impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustmentto equity.
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2.1 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for th ',' .
number of equicy shares outstanding during the period. e period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding durin the eri d i . .
rights Issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) ~ha~ h s ad~usted for events such as. bonus Issue, bonus element in a
corresponding change in resources. ave c anged the number of equity shares outstanding, without a

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share the net rofit : If' .
average number of shares outstanding during the period 'is adJ'ust:d for ~ oSffscts°r thfePilednoI d attributable te equity shareholders.and the weightede e e 0 a I utive potential equity shares.

Ordinary shares that will be issued upon the conversion of a mandatoril . ible t . . '.
per share from the date' these mandatorily convertible instruments are CI:S~~~~e: e~~~~trument are tncluded In the calculation of basic earnings

2.2 Contributed equity
~~~~~ti~~~r~!t~eta~~~~:~dtha: P~~~~~dslncremental costs direCj:ly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity .as a

The transaction costs incurred with respect to the proposed IPO 9F the Company is recognised as an asset to the extent considere r
from the seiling shareholders. Remaining costs attributable to listing of existing shares is recognised in profit or loss. d ecoverable

2.2 Dividends
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately atJthorised and no longer at the discretion of the entity, on or
before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

2.2 Rounding of amounts
All amounts .disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest thousands as permitted by Schedule III of
Companies Act, 2013, unless otherwise stated. Amounts mentioned as "0.00" in-the financial statements denote amounts rounded off being less
than INR 500. '

3 Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements requires the use of accountinq estimates whi£h could differ from the actual results. Management
also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company's accounting policies. This note provides an overview of the areas that involved higher
degree of judgement or complexity and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turntno out to
be different than those originally assessed. Detailed Information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in the relevant notes
together with information about the basis of calculation Fmeach affected line item in the financial statements.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are beueved to be reasonable under the ctrcurnstances.

3 Significant estimates:-

i) Defined benefit plans and compensated absences:
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination
of the discount rate, future salary increases attrition rates and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly .sensitive to.changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The
parameter most subject to chanqe is the 'discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the management considers the interest rates
of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. Further details about gratuity

obligations are given in Note 12.

3 Critical judgement:

i) R.ecognitionand measurementof deferred tax:
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based qpon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The company has not recognise.dthe deferred tax asset
in the absence of being able to reasonably estimate the extent of future taxable profits against which to' utilise these assets. Further .details about

Deferred tax assets are given in Note 21.
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4 New and amended standards and Reclassifications consequent to amendments to Schedule III

i) New and amended standards adopted by the Company:

The Company has applied the following amendments to Ind AS for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing 1 April 2021:
• Extension of COVID-19 related concessions - amendments to Ind AS 116

• Interest rate benchmark reform - amendments to Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, Ind AS 107, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, Ind AS
104, Insurance Contracts and Ind AS 116, Leases.

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to Significantly affect the
current or future periods

The standards and amendments mentioned above did not have any significant impact on the amounts recognised in prior years and does not
have significant impact in the amounts recognised in the current year.

ii) New amendments issued but not effective:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2022 which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective 1 April 2022. These amendments are not expected to have a material impact
on the Company in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

iii) Reclassifications consequent to amendments to Schedule III:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs amended the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 on 24 March 2021 to increase the transparency and
provide additional disclosures to users of financial statements. These amendments are effeCtive from 1 April 2021.

Consequent to above, the Company has changed the classification/presentation of security deposits, in the current year.

Security deposits (which meet the definition of a financial asset as per Ind AS 32) have been included in 'other financial assets' line item.
Previously, these deposits were included in 'loans' line item.

The Company has reclassitled comparative amounts to conform with current year presentation as per the requirements of Ind AS 1. The impact of
such classifications is summarised below:

31 March 2021 Increasel 31 March 2021
Balance sheet (extract) (as previously (Decrease) (as restated)

reported)
3,360.00 (3,360.00) -Loans (current)

Other financial assets (current) 208,161.77 3,360.00 211,521.77
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5 Property, plant and equipment
Gross block

Particulars at
2821

Additions Disposals
As at

31 March
2022

As at
1April 2021

As at
31 March
2022

Net Block
As at

:tl "'"rch
2022

Computer equipments

Office equipments

28,022.57
310.24

1,601.08
21.58

3,386.74 26,236.91 25,401.85
331.82 256.34

1,432.90 3,217.40 23,617.36
23.82 280.16

2,619.55
51.66

Carrying amount 28,332.81 1,622.66 3,386.74 26,568.73 25,658.19 1,456.72 3,217.40 23,897.52 2,671.21

Computer equipments
Office equipments

32,584.44
509.02

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2021 2021

4,561.87 28,022.57 4,108.04 25,401.85 2,620.72
198.78 310.24 315.41 48.92 107.99 256.34 53.90

4,760.65 28,332.81 27,351.08 2,523.15 4,216.03 25,658.19 2,674.62Carrying amount 33,093.46

Note: The Company does not own any any immovable property in the current year or in the previous year.
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6 Intangible assets
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7 Financials assets

7(a} Current investments

-
P11I;tiadarSli

" 3-1 MatCl"':20c~2 -i3l. Ma~ 20ll.
Jnve~tm!}_ntin Mutuel Fundi ilt@ir ve1/&throl1ghQroflt and IQs5[QQotr;d)_
HDFCUquid FundsGrowth Units 24,169 (202J: 17;750) 100,344_61 71,313.89
lOCI Prudential Liquid Funds Growth Units 203,438 (2021: 317,626) 63,705.37 96,254.30
Total current investments 164,049.98 167,568.19

Aggr€Qateamount of quoted investments and market value thereof 164,049.98 167,568.19
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments - -
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value 'of Investments -

7(b) Trade receivables

Rarticlj'ars '" " :,,' , 31 'M"fcl) 20'2-2- 31 ~al:eh 20:2'1
Trade receivables from contract with customers - billed 77,253.33 59,159.20
Trade receivables from contract with customers - unbilled" 854.47 38.14
Less: Lossallowance (6,385.96) (2,343.40)
Total trade receivables 71,721.83 56,853.94
Current portion 71,.721.83 56,853.94
Non- Current portion -

"The receivable is 'unbilled' because the Company has not yet issued an invoice; however, the balance has been included under
trade receivables (as opposed.to contract assets) because it isen uncorxnnoner right to consideration.

Rartlc,!lars '
g "-= ~ ".f!."" ~1"ar$~022 3,1Mariah 20;2-1

Trade receivablesconsidered good - secured
Trade receivablesconsidered good - unsecured 78,107.80 59,197.34

Trade receivableswhich have significant increase in credit risk -

Trade receivables- credit impaired -
Total 78;107.80 59,197.34

Lossallowance (6,385.96) (2,343.40)

Total trade receivables 71,721.83 56,853.94

1"0131
.1

854.47 37,475.00 35,642.36 1,904.75 z.zsa.zz(il UndisputedTrade Receivables­
considered good

eli) Undisputed Trade Receiviibles- which
have significant increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- credit
impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables~
considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables-: which
have significant inCreasein credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables- credit
impaired

78,107.80

854.47 37,475.00 35,642.36 1,904.75 2,231.22 78,107.80

Total
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7(b) Trade receivables (contd.)

i UndisputedTradeReceivables- which
havesignificant increasein credit risk
(iii) UndisputedTradeReceivables- credit
impaired

(v) DisputedTradeReceivables- which
have significantincreasein credit risk

DisputedTradeReceivables- credit

7(c) cash and cash equivalents

Particulars
Balanceswith bank:
- in current accounts
- in ExchangeEarnersforeign Currency(EEFC)accounts
Cashon hand

16,773.75
15,074.55

19.75

5,001.17
12,996.60

9.91
Total cash and cash equivalents 31,868.05 18,007.68

7(d) Other financial assets

Particulars
31 Mardl2021

CUrrent Non.,current Current Non-current
(Unsecured,consideredgood, unless
otherwisestated)
Bankoeposits"
SecurityDeposits
Other receivables

217,666.05
3,360.00

34.72

208,147.39
3,360.00

14.38
Total other financial assets 221,060.77 211,521.77

, Bankdeposits(current) representsdepositswith original maturity more than 12months but realisablewithin the next 12months.

8 Current tax assets (net)

31 March 2022 31 Mardl~2021

Advancetax [net of provisionfor tax INRNil (31 March2021: Nil)]' 45,261.61 25,662.17

Total current tax assets (net) 45,261.61 25,662.17

'Includes amountspaid under protest INR340.12 (2021: INR340.12)

9 Other assets

PoutIc:ulars Cu..,t •• Current Non-eurrent

Prepaidexpenses
Balancein prepaidcorporatecards
Advanceto Vendors

2,309.51
477.45
725.03

1,208.72 104.44
712.20
273.74

Total other assets 3,511.99 2,194.66 104.44
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10 Share capital and other equity

10(a) Equity share capital

i) Authorised equity share capital

As at 1 April 2020
Changes during the year
As at 31 March 2021
Changes during the year
As at 31 March 2022

1,500,000 1,500.00

1,500,000
108,000,000

1,500.00
108,000.00

109,500,000 109,500.00

ii) Movements in equity share capital
Issued, subscribed and paid-up:

As at 1 April 2020
Changes during the year
As at 31 March 2021
Changes during the period due to conversion of CCPSinto Equity
Bonus shares issued during the year
As at 31 March 2022

1,107,344 1,107.34

1,107,344 1,107.34
785,301 785.30

98,417,540 98,417.54
100,310,185 100,310.18

iii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares:

Equity Shares: The Company has one class of equity shares having par value of INR 1 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share
held. The dividend, if proposed by the Board of Directors, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,
except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company
after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company:

25,542,184
25,542,184

25.46
25.46

481,928
481,928

43.52
43.52

21,961,769 21.89
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10(a) Equity share capital (contd.)
v) Promoters'Shareholdings

As at 31 March 2021

481,928 43.52%
481,928 43.52%

963,856 87.04%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Neha Singh
AbrushekGoyal
Total

vi) Shares reserved for issue under options and contracts:
Refer Note 25 for details of shares to be issued under the Employee Stock Option Plan. Refer note 10(b)(iv) for CCPSissued.

Vii) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares bought back and share issued for consideration other than cash during the year of five years
immediately preceding the reporting date i.e. 31 March 2022 :

(a)The Company has issued 98,417,540 equity shares as bonus shares during the year ended 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: Nil shares).
(b) The Company has not issued any shares pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash and has not bought back shares during
the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

viii) Consequent to the approval of the shareholders of the Company in their meeting held on 08 July 2021, the Company has increased its authorised
share capital of equity shares from 1,500,000 shares to 109,500,000 shares of Re.1 each during the year ended 31 March 2022.

ix) The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 21 July 2021 approved conversion of 744,137 CCPShaving face value of INR 10
each into 744,137 equity shares having face value of INR 1 each and proposed capitalisation of securities premium on account of issuance of bonus
shares in the ratio 52: 1 per fully paid equity share having face value of INR 1 per share. The shareholders in their meeting dated 23 July 2021 have
approved the issuance of such bonus shares.

Further to this, the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 10 December 2021 approved conversion of 41,164 CCPShaving face
value of INR 10 each into 41,164 equity shares having face value of INR 1 each and issue of bonus shares. The issue of bonus shares in the ratio 52
:1 per fully paid equity share having face value of INR 1 per share to these CCPSshareholders upon conversion to equity shares was approved in the
board meeting held on 21 July 2021 and shareholders meeting held on 23 July 2021.
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10(b) Instruments entirely equity in nature
Preference share capital

i) AuthorisedPreferencesharecapital

1,050,000

10,500.00

As at April 1,2020
Changes during tile year
As at 31 March 2021
Changes during tile year
As at 31 March 2022

1,050,000

10,500.00

10,500.001,050,000

ii) Movementsin PreferenceshareCapital
Issued, subscribed and paid-up:

91,871
693,430

918.71
6,934.30

As at April 1,2020
Changes during tile year on account of modification of CCPS[Refer note 10(b)(v)]
As at 31 March 2021
Changes dunnq tile year due to conversion of CCPSinto Equity [Refer note 10(a)(ix)]
As at 31 March 2022

785,301
(785,301)

iii) Detailsof shareholdersholdingmore than 5% of the aggregatesharesin the Company:

317,262 100

5,055 100

11,168 15
11,168 15
11,168 15
11,168 15

8,376 11

5,584 7
5,584 7

11,991 100

II Limited 76,304 33
capital V Limited (formerly 76,304 33

Partners India V Limited)
India (IV) Mauritius Ltd 38,152 17

SCI Investment V 28,614 13
Series 81 CCPS:
Seabright II Limited 4,016 5
Elevation Capital V Limited (formerly 20,707 27
SAIF Partners India V Limited)
Accel India (IV) Mauritius Ltd 37,650 50

12,550 17

Platform Fund 99

7,853.01
(7,853.01)
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lOeb) Instruments entirely equity in nature (contd.)
Iv) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares:

Series A Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares: ("CCPS"): The fully paid Series A compulsorily convertible cumulative
preference shares of INR 10 each were issued at a premium of INR 068.25 each and are convertible into equity shares in the ratio 1:1 subject to
adjustments as mentioned in the shareholders agreement, any time before expiry of nineteen years from the date. of issue of the same; or in
connection with a Initial Public Offering (IPO), prior to the filing of a prospectus by the Company with the competent authority or such later date as
may be permitted under Law. The cumulative preference dividend shall be payable at 0.001% p.a. The dividend shall be oavable, in the event the
Board declares any dividend for the relevant year, and shall be paid pari passu with the holders of Series M, Bl and B2 (CPS, and in priority to
equity shares and Series AI, A2. and A3.CCPS.Refer note 10(b)(v) for modification to the terms of the CCPS.

Ordinary (Series Ai) (CPS: The ordioarv (Series AI) compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares of INR 10 each were issued at a
premium of INR 440.05 each and are convertible into equity shares in the ratio 1:1 subject to adjustments as mentioned in the shareholders
agreement, any time before expiry of nineteen years from the date of issue of the same; or in connection with a lPG, prior to the filing of a
prospectus by the Company with the competent authority or such later date as may.be permitted under Law. The cumulative preference dividend
shall be payable at 0.001% p.a. The dividend shall be payable, subject to cash flow solvency, in the event the Board declares any dividend for the
relevant year, and shall be paid subsequent to the preference of the holders of Series A, A2, A3, M, B1 and B2 CCPSand in priority to equitv shares.

Series A2 CCPS:TIle Series A2 ccrnpulsorllv converttble cumulative preference shares of INR 10 each were issuedata premium of.INR 1,154 each
and are cenvertible into equity shares in the ratio 1: 1 subject to adjustments as rnentlened in the shareholders agreement, any time before expiry of
nineteen years from the date of issue of the same: or in connection with .a IRO, prior to the filing of a prospectus by the Company with the
competent authmity or such later date as may be permitted under Law. The cumulative preference dividend shall be payable at 0.001% p.a. The
dividend shall be payable, subject to cash flow solvency, in the event the Board declares any dividend fer the relevant year, and Shall be paid (i) after
payment of dividend to holders of Series A, M, B1 and B2 CCPS(ii) pari passu with the holders of-Series A3 CCPSand (iii) in pJriorityto equity shares
and series Al CGPS.

Series A3 CCPS:The Series A3 compulsorily convertible cumulanve preference shares of INR 10 each were issued at a premium of INR 1,386.93
each and are convertible into equity shares in the ratio 1:1 subject to adjustments as mentioned in the shareholders agreement, any time before
expiry of nineteen years from the date of issue of the same; or in connection with a IPO, prior to the filing of a prospectus by 'the Company with the
competent authority or such later date as may be periiiitted under Law. The cumulative preference dividend shall be payable at 0.001% p.a. The
dividend shall be payable, subject to cash flow solvency, in the event the Board declares any dividend for the relevant year, and shall be paid (i) after
payment of dividend to holders of Series A, A4', B1 and B2 CCPS(ii} pari passu with the holders of Series A2 (CPS and (iii) in priority to equity shares
and Series A1 CCPS.

Series A4 CCPS:The Series M compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares of INR 10 each were issued at a premium of INR 1,719.93
each and are convertible into equity shares in the ratio 1:1 subject to adjustments as mentioned in the shareholders agreement, any time before
expiry of nineteen years, from the date of issue of the some; or in connection with a IPO, prior to the filing of a prospectus by the Company with the
competent authority or such later date as may be permitted under Law. The cumulative preference dividend shall be payable 'at 0.001% p.a. The
dividend snail be payable, subject to cash flow solvency, in the event the Board declares any dividend for the relevant year, and shall be pai.dpari
passuwith the holders of Series A. B1 and B2 CCPS,and in priority to equity shares, Series AI, A2 and A3 CCPS.Refer note 10(b)(v) for modification
to the terms of the CCPS.

Series 81 CCPS:The series Bl compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares of INR 10 each were issued at a premium of INR 2,539.83
each and are convertible into equity shares in the ratio 1:1 subject to adjustments as mentioned In the shareholders agreement, any time before
expiry of nineteen years from the date of issue of the same; or in connection with a [PO, prior to the filing of a prospectus by the Company with the
competent authority orsuch later date as may be permitted under Law. The cumulative preference dividend shall be payable at 0.001% p.a. The
dividend shall be payable, subject to cash flow solvency, in the event the Board declares any dividend for the relevant year, and shall be paid pari
passu with the holders of Series A, M and B2 CCPSand in priority to equity shares, Series A1, A2 and A3 CCPS.Refer note 10(b)(v) for modification
to the terms of the CCPS.

Series 82 CCPS:The Series B2 compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares of INR \0 each were issued at a premium of INR 2,945.48
each and are convertible into equity Shares.in the ratio 1:1 subject to adjustmerits as mentioned in the shareholders agreement, any time before
expiry of nineteen years from the date of issue of the same; or in connectlon with a IPO, prior to the filing of a prospectus by the Company with the
competent authority or such later date as may be permitted under Law. The cumulative preference dividend shall be payable at 0,001 % p.a, The
dividend shall be payable, subject to cash flow solvency, in the event the Board declares any dividend for tne relevant year, and shall be paid pari
passu With the holders of Series A, M and Series B1 (CPS arid in priority to equity shares, Series AI, A2 and A3 CCPS.Refer note 10(b)(v) for
modification to the terms of the CCl'S.

In an event of liquidation, the settlement terms detailing order of preference to shareholders is detailed in the shareholder's
agreement

The terms and conditions Of the Series A, Series A4, Series Bl and Series B2 CCPSincluded buy back rights which would get triggered if certain
conditions as per the shereholders agreements are not met. Hence, such CCPSwere accounted as other financial liabiliUes on transition to, Ind AS
from 1 April 2019. The terms and conditions of the Series Ai. Series A2, Series A3 CCPSdoes not mcluce any buy back rights.. AccordinGly, 011 'such
preference shares issued are classified .as instruments entirely equity in nature from the date of issue of such CCPS.
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10(b) Instruments entirely equity in nature (contd.)
(v) Pursuantto waivercum amendmentagreementdated 30 March2021 to the shareholdersagreementdated 10 December2020, SeriesA, SeriesM,

SeriesB1 and SeriesB2 CCPSholders have waived off their buyback right consequentto which such CCPShave been classifiedas instruments
entirelyequity in naturewith effect from 30 March2021.

Consequently,suchCCPSin their entirety met the definition of an equity instrumentas per Ind AS32with effect from 30 March2021. As a resultof
this, the entire financial liabilities pertaining to such CCPSas at 30 March2021 have been classifiedas preferenceshare capital, Securitypremium
andRetainedearningsaccordingly,after adjusting for fair market valuegain of INR 104,634.48for the period 01 April 2020 to 30 March2021. [Also
refer Notes 10(c)and 16(b)). Suchpresentationas at 31 March2021 is in accordancewith Ind ASandCompaniesAct, 2013.

10(c) Reserves and surplus

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 MaR:.h2021

SecuritiesPremiumAccount
Employeestockoption reserve
Retainedearnings

1,031,549.21
250,629.63

(1,176,077.91)

1,122,899.04
217,929.58

(1,127,557.20)

Total reserves and surplus 106,100.93 213,271.42

(i) Securities Premium Account
..

1,122,899.04
(98,417.54)
7,067.71

114,163.66Openingbalance
Less:Reservesusedin issueof Bonusshares[refer note 10(a)(ix)]
Changesduring the year on accountof modificationof CCPS[refer note 10(b)(v)]

...."'.

1,008,735.38
1,031,549.21Closing balance

(Ii) Employee stock option reserve

1,122,899.04

217,929.58
32,700.05

190,653.29
27,276.29

Openingbalance
Employeestockoption expensefor the year

250,629.63Closing balance

(iii) Retained earnings

217,929.58

Partiqllars 31March~22
(1,127,557.20)

(48,476.71)
(1,659,269.74)

(53,476.60)
573,239.67

Openingbalance
Net (loss) for the year
Add: Changesduring the year on accountof modificationof CCPS[refer note 10(b)(v)
Items of other comprehensive income / (loss) recognised directly in retained earnings
_Remeasurementsof post-employmentbenefit obligation, net of tax (44.00) 11,949.47

(1,127,557.20)(1,176,077.91)Closing balance

Nature and purpose of reserves:
Securities Premium Account
Securitiespremium is used to record the premium receivedon issueof equity sharesand CCPSthat meets the definition of equity. The reserve is
utilisedin accordancewith the provisionsof the Act.

Employee stock option reserve
The reserveis usedto recognisethe grant date fair valueof options issuedto employeesunderTracxnEmployeeStockOption
Plan2016.

·M·······. ~ > •

y--
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11 Financial liabilities

11(a) Trade payables

Partk:ulars

Trade payables: Micro and Small Enterprises (MSME) [Refer note 33]
Trade payables: others

38.69 99.67
6,609.19 14,057.05

Total trade payables 6,647.88 14,156.72

TradePayablesageing scheduleas at 31 March 2022

Outstanding for following periods from the dlle date of payment
Lessthan 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than
1 Year 3 Years

TotaJ
Particulars Unbilled Not Due

MSME
Others
Disputed dues - MSME
Disputed dues - Others
Total

38.69
1,520.04

38.69
6,609.195,089.15

5,089.15 1,558.73 6,647.88

TradePayablesageing scheduleas at 31 March 2021

Particulars Not Due
Outstanding for following periods from the due date of paYment
Lessthan More than
1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 3 Years

Total
Unbilled

72.43 5.15 99.67
14,057.05

22.10
13,482.65

MSME
Others
Disputed dues - MSME
Disputed dues - Others
Total

466.40 108.00

113.15 14,156.7213,504.75 538.83

11(b) Other financial liabilities

Particulars 31 March 2022
Current Non-current

31 March 2021
Current Non-current

Employees Benefits Payable 1,861.64 1,420.54
Total other financial liabilities 1,861.64 1,420.54
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12 Employee benefit obligations

31 March 2022

Current Non·cqr~ -
31

Current·
Compensatedabsences[Refer note (i) below]
Gratuity [Refernote (ii) below]

12,781.73
3,369.08 34,159.29

10,889.79
2,090.03 27,851.91

Total employee benefit obligations 16,150.81 34,159.29 12,979.82 27,851.91

i} Compensated absences
The leaveobligationscover the Company'sliability for paid leaves.The entire amount of the provision is presentedas current, since the Company
does not havean unconditionalright to defer settlement for any of these obligations.However, basedon past experience,the Companydoes not
expectall employeesto avail the full amount of accruedleaveor requirepaymentfor such leavewithin the next 12months.

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 Marth 2021
Leaveobligationsnot expectedto be settledwithin the next 12months 10,864.47 9,256.32

ii} Post-employment obligations

a) Gratuity
The Companyprovides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity (Amendment) Act, 2018. Employeeswho are in
continuousservicefor a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payableon termination/retirement is the employeeslast
drawnbasicsalaryper month computedproportionatelyfor 15dayssalarymultipliedfor the numberof yearsof service.

Finalliability is actuariallyvaluedand recognisedin the booksas at the end of eachyear by the Company.The gratuity planof the Companyis not
funded.

. . : _,L "-. ;'" ':'

29,941.93 32,705.14
8,401.31 8,397.55
2,042.04 2,207.60
(2,900.91) (1,418.89)

22.50 (11,026.67)
(342.59)

21.50 (580.21)
37,528.37 29,941.93

37,528.37 29,941.93

37,528.37 29,941.93

A) Present value of defined benefit obligation
Obligationsat the beginningof the year
Currentservicecost
Interest cost
Benefitspaid
Remeasurement(gains)/ losses
- arisingfrom changesin demographicassumptions.
- arisingfrom changesin financialassumptions.
- arisingfrom changesin experienceadjustments.
Obligations at the end of the year

B) Net (asset)/liability:
Presentvalueof defined benefit obligation
Fairvalueof planassets
Net (asset)/obligation

_ .._._------------------------------------
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12 Employee benefit obligations (contd)

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

C) Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Currentservicecost
Interest cost
Total amount recognised in the Statement of Prof"lt and Loss

8,401.31
2,042.04

10,443.35

8,397.55
2,207.60

10,605.15

D) Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
(Gains)/Iossesarisingfrom changesin
- demographicassumptions
- financialassumptions
- experienceadjustments
Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

22.50 (11,026.67)
(342.59)

21.50 (580.21)
44.00 (11,949.47)

10,487.35 (1,344.32)

6.81% 6.82%
14.00% 14.00%
18.00% 18.00%

IALM(2012-14) IALM(2012-14)
Ultimate Ultimate

Total amount recognised in Statement of Total Comprehensive Income (C+D)

E) Actuarial assumptions
Discountrate per annum(Key)
Salaryescalationrate (Key)
Withdrawalrate (Key)

Mortalityrate (Non-key)

F) Expected contribution in next year

G) Reconciliation of amounts in Balance Sheet
Net definedbenefit liability/ (asset) at the beginningof the year
Definedbenefit cost includedin statementof profit and loss
Total remeasurementsincludedin other comprehensiveincome
Benefitspaid
Net defined benefit liability (asset) at the end of the year

29,941.93
10,443.35

44.00
(2,900.91)

37,528.37

32,705.14
10,605.15
(11,949.47)
(1,418.89)

29,941.93

Risk Exposure
Through its definedbenefit plan, the Companyis exposedto a numberof risks.The most significantrisksare:

(i) Interest rate risk: The defined benefit obligationcalculatedusesa discount rate basedon governmentbonds. If bond yields fall, the defined
benefitobligationwill tend to increase.

(ii) Salary inflation risk: Higherthan expected increasesin salarywill increasethe definedbenefit obligation.

(iii) Demographic risk: This is the risk of variability of results due to factors like mortality, withdrawal, disability and retirement. The effect of
theseon the definedbenefit obligation is not straight forward and dependsupon the combinationof salary increase,discount rate andattrition rate.
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12 Employee benefit obligations (contd)

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the principal assumptions is as under:

Decrease by
Increase by

(855.77)
927.55

(1,093.53)
1,160.33

(938.09)
996.98

(854.17)Decrease by
Increase by

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, trns is unlikely to
occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant
actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with projected unit credit method at the end of
the reporting period) has been applied when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior year.

Defined benefit liability and employer contributions
The

4,492.61
4,412.31
249.21

b) Defined Contribution Schemes
Contributions are made to recognized government provident funds and Employee State Insurance Scheme in India for employees at a spedfied
percentage of basic salary as per the regulations. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are administered by the Government.
The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The Company
recognised INR 15,313.70 (2021: INR INR 14,959.98) for Provident fund contribUtions and INR 1,441.92 (2021: INR 1,678.91) for Employee State
Insurance Scheme contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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13 Contract liabilities

Notes:
i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried-forward contract liabilities and how
much relates to performance obligations that were satisfied in a prior year:

a) Revenue recognised that was included in contract liabilities balance as at the beginning of the year.

b) There was no revenue recognised from performance obligations satisfied in previous year.

c) Themovement in contract liability (deferred revenueand Advancesreceivedfrom customers) is as follows:

d) As at 31 March 2022, the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations is INR 255,470.19 (2021:
INR 195,052.33). Out of this, the Company expects to recognize revenue of INR 254,357.96 (2021: INR 194,112.22) within the next one year and
the remaining in the year after that.

14 Other liabilities

31 March 102131 March 1011
Current Non-currentParticulars current

8,708.228,943.78
7,570.00
2,930.74

Statutory Dues
Ex-gratia Employee Benefits
Refund Liabilities [refer note (i) belov 2,186.16

10,894.38Total other liabilities 19,444.52

Note
i) Where a customer has a right to terminate a contract within a given period, the Company recognises a refund liability for the amount of

consideration received/ receivable for which the Company does not expect to be entitled. This liability is estimated by the management as at year
end based on past trends.
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15 Revenue from operations

The Company derives its revenue from the sale of subscription services.

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Sale of services:

Income from sale of subscription services 634,535.12 437,786.71
Total revenue from operations 634,535.12 437,786.71

Notes:

a) Disaggregation of revenue from contract with customers
The Company is solely into the business of providing subscription services to customers and hence there is no
further disaggregation of services.

b) Reconciliation of Revenue recognised with the Contract Price

(60,473.07)

16 Other income and other gains/(Iosses)

(a) Other income
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Interest income from bank deposits measured at amoritsed cost 10,576.28 9,889.07
Interest on income tax refund - 265.22
Miscellaneous income 387.20 79.21
Total other income 10,963.48 10,233.50

(b) Other gains/(Iosses)

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Net (loss) on disposal of Property, plant and equipment

Net gains on sale of investments

Net fair value gains on financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss
Fair value gain/ (loss) on CCPSmeasured at fair value through profit or
loss

Foreign exchange gain/(Ioss) (net)

(169.35) (442.04)

4,560.69

914.10

5,493.70

849.99

775.53

104,634.48

(1,138.75)
Total other gains/(Iosses) - net 6,080.97 109,397.38

'~'-...~.;.....~,... ~-
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17 Employee benefits expense

31 March 2022 31 Marcb 2021Particulars
Salaries, Wages & Bonus
Contribution to Provident and other funds [Refer note 12(b)]

Employee stock option expense
Gratuity Expenses [Refer note 12(a)]
Staff welfare expenses

522,041.00
16,755.62
32,700.05
10,443.35
3,770.23

481,405.71
16,638.89
27,276.29
10,605.15
2,204.86

Total employee benefits expense 585,710.25 538,130.90

18 Depreciation expense

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 1,456.72 2,523.15

Total depreciation expense 1,456.72 2,523.15

19 Other expenses

Particulars 31 Ma~ch2022 31~Marcb2021

Software Expenses 3,024.73 2,696.15

Rent for Building 12,110.00 22,877.16

Repair and Maintenance Charges - Computer 386.85 109.27

Repair and Maintenance Charges - Other 531.65 1,522.97

Bank and Payment Gateway Charges 3,144.05 2,327.78

Legal and Professional Fee 4,948.60 13,341.84

Printing and Stationery Expenses 625.95 183.42

Travelling expenses 201.70 0.00

Director sitting fees 1,425.00 -
Director commission 2,612.92 -
Rates and Taxes 364.69 2,387.93

Power and fuel - 569.71

Communication Expenses 55.24 350.36

Payment to auditors [Refer note below] 1,800.00 1,250.00

Web Hosting and Domain Charges 31,622.16 22,850.92

Impairment loss/ (reversal) on financial assets (refer note 23) 4,042.56 (833.09)

Miscelleneous Expenses 1,085.28 605.72

Total other expenses 67,981.38 70,240.14

- - - ------------------



Note: Details of payment to auditors

Payment to auditors
As auditor:

Audit fee
Tax audit fee
Other audit services relating to lPO (refer note 20)

1,700.00
100.00

8,400.00

1,200.00
50.00

Particulars 31 Ma~h 2Q22 31 Marthl ~·U_":112-~·:;:'1;--.

Total payments to auditors 10,200.00 1,250.00

20 Exceptional Items

Total IPO Expenses 44,907.93

The transaction costs incurred with respect to the proposed lPO of the Company is recognised as an expense.
Upon successful completion of lPO, certain lPO related expenses will be recovered from the selling
shareholders.
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21 Income Taxes
A. Deferred tax asset recognition
Deferred tax assets, have not been ireeoqnlsedin the absenceof being able to reasonablyestimate the extent of future
taxable profits again:;!:which to utilise these assets. However this position will be reassessedat every year end and the
deferred'tax assetwill be accountedfor, w.henappropriate.

The amountof deferred tax assetnot recognisedhasbeenarrivedas follows:

PiifticUJCltS
_

31.l.M;iiFCI'"20'21Z, .31 ~~fCl1-:i.!!-2;l,,",

carry forward businesslossesas per incometax 230,007.28 201,445.19

Unabsorbeddepreci"ationas per incometax S,1l0.14 8,151.52
Qther temporarydifferences 17,206.66 11,891.84

Less:Deferredtax liabilities (237.67) (268.44)

Deferred tax assets (net) 255,086.41 221,218.11

a) Unabsorbeddepreciationdoes not haveany expiry period.
b) carry forward businesstosses havean expiry rangingfrom 1 to 8 yearsas at the reporting date, refer
below.
c) Tax rate consideredfor arriving at the aboveamounts is 26% (202t: 26%)

B. Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate

Part,icu_lar.st ;31"t'ar:ch·/t022 at JIf,II-cn 2021
Lossbefore incometax expense (48,476.71) (53,476.60)
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 26% (2021: 26%) (12,603.94) (13,'103.92)

Tax effect of amountswhichare not deductible(taxable) in
calculatingtaxable income:
Fairvalueadjustment on CCPS (27,204.97)

lPOexpenses 11,676.06
Employeestock option expense 7,091.84

Other items (2,426.64) 162.76

Tax lossesfor which no deferred incometax was recognised
_

22,746.52
Tax impactof items recognisedin other comprehensiveincom-e (11.44) 3,106.86
Impact of indexationnot consideredin deferred tax (4,664:24)

Previouslyunrecognisedtax lossesnow recoupedto reduce (2,158.49)
current tax expense
Deferredtax assetsnot recoqnisedon other temporary 5,524.45 12,665.14
differences
tncome tax expense - -
carry forward businesslossesin respectof which deferredtax asset has not been recognised,expire unutilisedOase.don the
year of originationas below:

,_ F-i,gandatyear ~;1Ma(Ch 2022, 31, 'March :2021
'Withinfour years 459,061.92 198,849.82

Beyondfour years, upto 8 years 425,581.46 575,931.66

C. Current tax:
There is no liability arisingon accountof current tax during the year ended 31 March2022 and31 March
2021.
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22 Fair value measurements

A. Financial instruments by category

P.~~ifri;:u!alCs be~el. A~at3l March 2022 As ·at.31 Mar-cli :lOU
·AIDQl'tis.edClast; FWPb I Amorti~ed Clost ,mel!I

Financial assets
Investments 1 164,049.98 - 167,568.19
Trade receivables 3 71,721.83 - 56,853.94 -
Cash and cash equivalents 31,868.05 - 18,007.68 -
Other financial assets 3 221,060.77 - 211,521.77 -
Total financial assets 324,650.65 164,049.98 286,383.39 167,568.19

Financialliabilities
Trade payables 3 6,647.88 - 14,156.72 -
Other financial liabilities 3 I 1,.861.64 - 1,420.54. -
Total financial 8,509.52 - 15,577.26 -
There are no. financial instruments which are measured at FVOCI

B. Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a)
recoqnised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial
statements. To. provide an mdlcatton about the reliability of the inputs used in deterrnmiru; fair value, the Company has classified its
financial instruments into. 3 levels/hierarchy prescribed under the accountinq standard.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes mutual funds that have quoted
price. The mutual funds are valued using the dosinq NAV.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which
maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible 0.(1 entity-specific estimates. If all Significant inputs required to.
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

During the year, there were no. financial instruments which are measured at Level 2 cateqorv,

Level 3: If one Dr more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in

There are no. transfers between the levels during the year.

C. Valuation techniques:
SpeCific valuation techniques used to' value financial instruments include:
- the use of published NAV's for mutual funds.
- the fair value of other financial liabilities (CCPS) is determined using Black Scholes option pricing model, (No. CCPS balance as at 31
March 2022 and 31 March 2021)

D. Valuation process:
The finance department Of the Company includes a team that performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for
finanCial reportinq purposes, including level 3 fair values.

E. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost:
The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents, other firiancial assets and other finandal liabilities
are considered to be the same as their fair values due to their short-term nature.

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to. the fair values.
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23 Financial risk management

The Company's activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The Company's risk management is carried
out by the management in accordance with the policies and objectives of the Company under the supervision of the
Board of Directors that help in identification, measurement, mitigation and reporting all risks associated with the activities
of the Company. These risks are identified on a continuous basis and assessed for impact on the financial performance.
Information on risks and the response strategy is escalated in a timely manner to facilitate timely decision making. Risk
response strategy is formulated for key risks by Management. The below table broadly summarizes the sources of
financial risk to which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk.

,', -,
Financia'i risk

.", Exp'o's'ure ' I, MeasLIr.elnent Management.arisi.na frQ01
Credit risk Cashand cash Ageing analysiS Periodic review of

equivalents, trade Credit ratings customer credit limits;
receivables and review of aging for trade
financial assets receivables
measured at
amortised cost.

Liquidity risk Trade payables, Rolling cash flow Continuous monitoring and
other financial forecasts, fund management to
liabilities and ensure timely payment of
other liabilities dues

Market risk - foreign exchange Future Sensitivity Increased focus on
commercial analysis a) advance export billing
transactions, b) localization to minimize
recognised risk
financial assets
and liabilities not
denominated in
Indian rupee

Market risk - security prices Investments in Sensitivity Portfolio diversification and
mutual funds analysis review of portfolio

A. Credit risk

Credit risk is a risk where the counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument leading to a financial
loss. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other financial assets, investments in mutual
funds and other financial assets measured at amortised cost.

(i)Credit risk management

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with banks with high
credit ra~ingsassigned by external agencies. Investments primarily include investment in debt based mutual funds whose
portfolios have instruments with high credit rating. The board of directors periodically review the investment portfolio of
the Company.

other financial assets includes refundable security deposits made on premises taken on lease. Management has
evaluated and concluded that the impact of credit losseson these deposits is not likely to be material.

Credit risk with respect to trade receivable is managed by the Company through setting up credit limit and periodical
review of credit worthiness of major customers. The Company has historically not faced significant challenges in
cOllectingmoney from its customers and thus the credit exposure is assessedto be low.
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23 Financial risk management (contd)

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach:

The Company applies the simplified approach to provide for expected credit loss prescribed by Ind AS 109, which permits
the use of lifetime expected loss provision for all the trade receivables. Determination of the amount of expected credit
losses includes consideration of forward looking information. The loss allowance is determined as follows:

Particulars Lessthan More than 6
Total6 months months

As at 31 March 2022
Gross carrying amount 70,867.36 6,385.96 77,253.33
Expected credit loss - measured at life-

(708.67) (5,677.29) (6,385.96)time expected credit loss

Carrying amount of trade receivables 70,158.69 708.67 70,867.36

Particulars Lessthan Morethan 6
Total6 months months

As at 31 March 2021
Gross carrying amount 56,853.94 2,343.40 59,197.34
Expected credit loss - measured at life-

(568.54) (1,774.86) (2,343.40)time expected credit loss
Carrying amount of trade receivables 56,285.40 568.54 56,853.94

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening provision for loss allowance 2,343.40 3,264.99
Add: Additional provision/ (reversals) - net 4,042.56 (833.09)
Less: Utilisation - (88.50)
Closing provision 6,385.96 2,343.40
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23 Financial risk management (contd)

B. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is a risk where an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business, Company's treasury maintains flexibility in
funding by maintaining availability of required funds.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.

Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all financial
liabilities.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balancesdue within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the
impact of discounting is not significant.

31 March 2021

14,156.72
1,420.54

.26

C. Market Risk
Market risk is a risk where the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market price.

(i) Foreign currency risk
The company is exposed to foreign exchange currency risk arising from foreign currency transactions primarily with respect to US$ which are not
hedged. Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the company's functional currency
(INR) The risk is measured through sensitivity analysis of probable movement in exchange rate as at the reporting period.

The company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR as follows:

'. C:i£..""', "p,,;.-
,.~~
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23 Financial risk management (contd)

Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments and the impact
is shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

720.55
(720.55)

403.15
(403.15)

7.90

(ii) Price risk

a) Exposure
The Company's exposure to price risk arises from investments held by the Company and dassitied in the Balance Sheet at fair value through profit
or loss. To manage its price risk arising from investments in debt mutual funds, the Company diversifies its portfolio.

b) Sensitivity
The table below summarizes the impact of increase/decrease of the index on the company's equity and profit for the year. The analysis is based on
the assumption that the NAV had increased by 5% or decreased by 5% with all other variables held constant.

24 Capital management

a) Risk management
The Company's objectives when managing capital are to:

(i) Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can provide returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
(ii) Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce cost of capital.

The Company's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and
market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. The Company manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and future business prospects.

The Company does not have access to any borrowings and undrawn facilities. However, the Company has suffiCient cash and Investments to meet
their liquidity requirements.
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25 Employee stock option expense
Tracxn EmployeeStockOption Plan2016 ("ESOP2016" or "the Pian"): The Boardvide its resolutiondated 3 October 2016 approved
ESOP2016 for granting EmployeeStock Options in the form of Equity Shares linked to the completion of a minimum period of
continued employment to the eligible employees of the Company.The eligible employees for the purpose of ESOP2016 will be
determinedby the Boardof Directors. Pursuantto the ExtraordinaryGeneralMeetingheld on 5 October 2016, the Boardof Directors
have been authorized to introduce, offer, issue and allot options to eligible employeesof the Companyunder the ESOP2016. The
maximumnumberof sharesunder this Planshall not exceed 1,21,52,582shares.TheseOptionsshall vest not lessthan one year and
not more than 4 years from the date of grant of suchOptions.The vestedOptionscan be exercisedonly upon happeningof a liquidity
event as defined in the Planand are exercisableat facevalue.

"Liquidity Event"shallmeananyoneor more of the following subject to the approvalof the Board:
(i) Listing,wherebythe Sharesof the Companyget listedon any recognizedStockExchange;
(ii) StrategicSalewithin the meaningof the ESOP2016; and
(iii) Any other event, which the Boardmay designateas a LiquidityEventfor the purposesof the ESOP2016.

Setout below is a summaryof options granted under the plan:

32,491
(14,779)

# Adjustedto give the impact of bonus issue.Refernote 10(a)(ix)
* Optionsare exercisableupon happeningof a liquidity event as defined in ESOP2016 scheme.

The weightedaverageremainingcontractual life for optionsoutstandingat the end of the period is 7.18 years (2021: 7.49 years).

The weightedaveragefair value of options granted as at grant date during the year ended 31 March 2022 was INR 45.11 per option
(after adjusting the impact of bonus issue) (2021: INR 1,851.94).The fair value at grant date is independentlydetermined using the
Black-ScholesModelwhich takes into account the exerciseprice, the term of the option, the share price at grant date and expected
pricevolatility of the underlyingshare, the expecteddividendyield and the risk-free interest rate for the term of the option. The model
inputs for optionsgrantedduring the year ended31 March2022 included:

Ass!Jmptions 31 March2022 31 Marth 2021
Expectedterm (in years)
Expectedforfeiture rate
Risk-freeinterest rate
Expectedvolatility
Dividendyield

10 years
10%

6.20%
42.90%
0%

10years
10%

6.84%
42.90%
0%
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26 Segment reporting

a) Description of segments and principal activities
The Company is involved in the rendering of software subscription servicesto its customers. This subscription
is given by way of access to the Tracxn Platform that hosts data that can be used by the customers. The
Boardof Directors review the operations of the Companyas a whole as one single segment. Accordingly there
are no separate reportable segments.

(b) Geographical information
The Company is domiciled in India. The amount of its revenue from external customers broken down by
location of the customers is shown in the table below.

India
United Statesof America
Other countries
Total

* There are no non-current assetswhich are outside India and hence no separate disclosuresgiven.

(c) Information about major customers
There is no single customer who contributes more than 10% of the total revenue of the Company.
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27 Related party transactions

A. Names of related parties and nature of relationship:

Names of.refamd nartiesDescriotion of relationship
a) Key Management personnel (KMP)

Whole Time Directors Neha Singh (also appointed as Managing Director
from 2 August 2021)
Abhishek Goyal

Non-Executive Directors Vivek Kumar Mathur
Ravi Chandra Adusumali

Independent Directors Brij Bhushan (from 6 August 2021)
Payal Goel (from 6 August 2021)
Nishant Verman (from 6 August 2021)
Rohit Jain (from 6 August 2021)

Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Prashant Chandra (from 2 August 2021)

b) Entity having significant influence over the Company Elevation Capital V Limited
(formerly SAIF Partners India V Limited)

B. Transactions with related parties (refer notes below)

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Short-term employee benefits
- Neha Singh
- Abhishek Goyal
- Prashant Chandra

7,435.79 6,339.23
609.90 4,839.23

4,923.26

446.58 293.24
50.28 (1,242.68)

365.86

297.13

Post-employment benefits
- Neha Singh
- Abhishek Goyal
- Prashant Chandra
Employee stock option expense
- Prashant Chandra

Notes:-
The above excludes:
a) expenses incurred in the ordinary course of business through prepaid corporate credit cards issued to whole time directo
b) issue of bonus shares.[Refer note 10(a)(ix)]

C. Transactions with Independent Directors (refer note below)

Remunerations

31 March 202131 March 201Z
FixedFixed

Remunerations'
Particulars Sitting FeeSitting Fee

653.23
653.23
653.23
653.23

Brij Bhushan
Payal Goel
Nishant Verman
Rohit Jain

575.00
250.00
200.00
400.00

Note: Independent directors were appointed during the year ended March 31, 2022 and hence there are no transactions
for the previous year.

D. Transactions with Entity having significant influence over the Company

a) Modifications made to Shareholders agreement on 30 March 2021, consequent to which certain CCPSwere classified to
Equity and issue of equity shares on conversion of CCPS.Also refer note 10(b lev).

b) Issue of bonus shares.[Refer note 10(a)(ix)]
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28 Contingent liabilities
The Company has the following contmeent liabilitie,s:

";. ". l?ilitit.glars ~" .'~, ~. _{!~ ~'1JIIIa'l'i;h 202~ 3'1: liIIarc!b~~d2'1.~
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt

Income tax matters (Refer Note (a) below) 3,179.04 3,179.04
Total contingent liabilities 3,179~04 3,179.04

a) The Company had issued equity shares in the financial year 2013-14 to certain individuals at a premium for which the Assessing officer had
added income in the hands ofthe Company arnountlnq to. INR 8,903.37 under secnon 56(2)(vii b) of the Inccme Tax Act, 1961. During the
year ended 31 March 2020, the Company has flied an appeal with the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (!TAT), where the !TAT Vide its order
dated 23 October 2020 has ruled in the favour of the Ccmpany. Pending receipt of revised assessment order from the department, the
Company continues to disdose the disputed amount as .contingent liability. The amounts disclosed above is including interest. Demand
amcunt is adjusted against refund for the financial year 2017-18 vide order dated 18 September 2019.

b) The Company has evaluated the impact of the recent Supreme Court Judgment in case of "Vivekananda Vidyamandir and Others Vs The
Regional Prcvident Fund Commissioner (IT) West Bengal" ana the related Circular (Circular No,C 1/1(33)2019/Vivekananda Vidya
Mandir/284) dated 20 March 2019 issued by the Employees' Provident Fund Organisaticn in relation to non-exclusion of certain allcwances
from the definition of "basic wages" of the relevant employees for the purposes of determining contribution to provident fund under the
Employees' Provident Funds & Miscellaneo~s Provisions ACt, 1952. In the assessment of the management, the aforesaid matter is not likely
to have a significant Impact and accordingly, no provision has been made in these Financial Statements.

c) It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending resolution ot the
respective proceedings.

29 Commitments
Capital commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as 'liabilities is INR Nil (2021: INR)

30 Earnings per share (EPS):

a) The earnings pershare has been calculated based on the fcllowing:

,u

Basic (loss) per share (In INR)

Diluted (loss) per share (In INR) [refer note (ii) below]
(0,48)
(0,48)

(0.55)
(1.52.

b) Reconciliaticn between number of shares for basic and diluted EPS:

Par.t~ulars~. 31 Marcil) 202~ 31 tJiaJ'{lh 20:2-1
Weighted average. equity shares outstanding [refer note ei) bei'bw] 100,310,185 58,689,232
Weighted average CCPSconvertible Into equity [refer note (i) below] - 38,790,795
Total weighted average number of shares outstanding considered far baste E 100,310,185 97,480,027
Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share:
Employee stock options [refer note (i) below] 10,467,573 5,923,085
CCPS[refer notes below] - 689,208
Total Weighted average number of shares' outstanding considered tor

110,777,758 10,\,092,320diluted EPS [refer notes below]

c) ReconCiliations ot earninqs used in calculating earnings per share:

~ .l:l~March202-2
(Loss) after tax attributable to equity holders of the Company
Less: Fair value gain/ (loss) on CCPSmeasured at FVTPL

(Loss) attributable to. the equity holders' of the Company used in calculating
dlluted earnings per share

(48,476.71) (53,476.60)
104,634,48

(48,476.71) (158,111.08)

Notes:-

(i) The earnings per share reflects the impact of bonus shares issuance in the ratio of''$2:1 [refer note 10(a)(ix)].

(ii) There are potential equity shares as on 31 March 2022 in the form of stock options granted to ernplovees. As these are anti dilutive,
they are ignored in the calculaticn of diluted earning/(Icss) per share and accordingly the diluted earning/(Icss) per share is the same as
basic earnings/(Ioss) per share tor the year ended 31 March 2022.
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31 Ratios

The following are analytical ratios for the .year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

Particulars Numerator Denominator 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 Variance Reasons for variance in
excess of 25%

Current Ratio Total current assets Total current liabilities 1.65 1.95 (15.56%) Not applicable
, Debt-equity ratio Total Debt Total equity NA NA NA Not applicable
Debt service coverage ratio Earnings available for

Debt service NA NA NA Not applicabledebt service

Variancedue to reduction in
Return on Equity (ROE) Net Profits after taxes Average Shareholder's

(0.24) (0.19) 25.80% shareholdersequity in the current
Equity year on account of loss pertaining

to earlier years.
Trade receivables turnover

Revenuefrom operations Average Trade receivables 9.87 8.68 13.69% Not applicableratio

Variancedue to higher trade
Trade payables turnover ratio Purchasesof services and A T d P bl 10.85 7.50 44.64% pavablesand lower expensesother expenses verage ra e aya es

during the year ended 31 March
2021

Working capital (Current Variancedue to increase in
Net capital turnover ratio Revenue from operations 3.28 1.97 66.51% revenue from operations for theassets - Current liabilities)

year ended 31 March 2.022.
Net profit ratio 'Net Profits after taxes Revenuefrom operations (0.08) (0.09) (19.39%) Not applicable

Variance due to increase in loss
Return on Capital employed Earnings before interest

Capital Employed# (0.28) (0.20) 36.71% for the year and reduction in
and tax capital employed for the year

ended 31 March 2022.
Return on Investment Earning before interest

Average Total Assets (0.09) (0.09) 4.82% Not applicableand taxes

# Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liability
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32 Leases

The Company has taken certain office premises on lease. Rental contracts are typically made for 1 to 3 years, but may have extension
options as described in note iii below. The notice period for such leases is 2-3 months where either party can terminate the lease without
any significant penalty or loss. Accordingly, the Company has elected to take short-term exemption for leases based on management
assessment.

i) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
P-al1liictlh~J~ Nbte

Expenses relating to short-term leases (included in other
expenses)

19 12,110.00 22,877.16

ii) Total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 March 2022 was INR12,110.00 (2021: INR 22,877.16)

iii) Extension and termination options are included in property lease agreements. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Company's operations. Extension and termination options held are exercisable by both the Company and
the lesser. Extension options have not been included in the lease term as exercising this option is currently not reasonably certain.

33 Dues to micro and small enterprises

~.~ .Pi!~eqlat$ ~, --.:; 1~31}Ma(Gh,202-2 ifH.,f'ti~f.dh 20'2i-
(i) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the 38.69 99.67

MSMEDAct and remaining unpaid as at year end
(ii) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED -. -

Act and remaining unpaid as at year end
(iii) Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under - -

the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the
year

(iv) Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED - -
Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act,
beyond the appointed day during the year.

(v) Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to - -
suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the
appointed day during the year

(vi) Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered - -
under MSMED Act, for payments already made

(vii) Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier - -
lvears

34 Impact of Covid
Management has carried out the impact assessment of the COVlD-19 pandemic on the operations of the Company and believes that there is
minimum disruption to the operations of the Company. As at the year end, the management has assessed the recoverability of the carrying
values of property, plant and equipment, trade receivables, investments, other assets and carrying value of liabilities and believes that no
adjustments are required to be. made in respect of such assets and liabilities as at 31.March 2022. Management has also assessed the
liquidity position of the Company for next 12 months and basis that assessment believes that the Company will be able to meet all its
financial obligations with the existing cash and bank balances and the projections of future cash inflows.

As explained above, management has considered all possible irnpacts of known events arising from COVID-19 pandemic in the preparation
of these financial statements and therefore, believes that the current pandemic is not likely to have a material impact an the operations and
financial position of the Company. The Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.
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35 Additional regulatory information

(i) Details of benami property held
No proceedingshave been initiated on or are pending against the Companyunder the Prohibitionof BenamiPropertyTransactionsAct,
1988(as amendedin 2016) (formerly the BenamiTransactions(Prohibition)Act, 1988(45 of 1988» and Rulesmade thereunder.

(ii) Borrowing secured against current assets
The Companyhasnot beensanctionedworking capital limits in excessof Rs. 5 crores, in aggregatefrom banksand financial institutions.

(iii) Wilful defaulter
The Companyhasnot beendeclaredwilful defaulter by any bankor financial institution or governmentor any government
authority.

(iv) Relationship with struck off companies
The Companyhasno transactionswith the companiesstruck off underCompaniesAct, 2013 or CompaniesAct, 1956.

(v) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The Companyhasnot entered into any schemeof arrangementwhich hasan accountingimpact on current or previousfinancialyear.

(vi) Undisclosed income
There is no incomesurrenderedor disclosedas incomeduring the current or previousyear in the tax assessmentsunder the IncomeTax
Act, 1961,that hasnot been recorded in the booksof account.

(vii) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Companyhasnot traded or investedin crypto currencyor virtual currencyduring the current or previousyear.

(viii) Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property
The Companyhas not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangible assets or both during the current or
previousyear

(ix) Core investment companies (CIC)
The Companyis not a CoreInvestment Company(CIC) as defined in the regulationsmadeby the ReserveBankof India.

(x) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Companyhas not made any investmentsand hencecompliancewith respectto number of layers prescribedunder section2(87) of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 readwith Companies(Restrictionof numberof layers)Rules,2017 is not applicable.
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(xi) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium
(A) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries)with the understandingthat the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other personsor entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries)or
(b) provideany guarantee,securityor the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(B) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Companyshall
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other personsor entities identified in any mannerwhatsoeverby or on behalf of the FundingParty
(UltimateBeneficiaries)or
(b) provideany guarantee,security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

36 Thesefinancialstatementsfor the year are approvedfor issueby Company'sBoardof Directorson August 17, 2022
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